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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Car-Trade Tech Limited (formerly known as MXC Solutions India Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly
known as MXC Solutions India Private Limited) (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™), its
subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) comprising of
the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31 2021, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including
other comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements™).

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on
the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group, as at March 31, 2021, their consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, their
consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group, in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

a) We draw attention to Note 2.4 to the financial statements, which describes the impact of lower recognition
of intangible assets and controlling stake in a business combination and forfeiture/cancellation and
disclosure of employee stock options and it’s consequent impact on the total comprehensive income and
on earnings per share, which has led to restatement of the financial statements as at April 01, 2019, as at
and for the year ended March 31, 2020.

b) We draw attention to Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements, which describes the uncertainties
and the impact of COVID 19 on carrying value of receivables, unbilled revenues, Right to Use assets,
Investment in subsidiaries and achievement of business plans, as assessed by the management.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the directors report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

%\& Ass‘gy bjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
re free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
Hejudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
~onducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements
of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

=—===rgquirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
m«mably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.




SR Ratiieoil e Accoriaree 11P
S.K. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly known as MXC Solutions India Private Limited)
Consolidated Auditor’s Report — March 2021
Page 4 of 7

Other Matter

(a)

Ou

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of two subsidiaries,
whose financial statements include total assets of Rs 414.38 lakhs as at March 31, 2021, and total revenues
of Rs 86.60 lakhs and net cash inflows of Rs 10.30 lakhs for the year ended on that date. These financial
statement and other financial information have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements,
other financial information and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the
Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors.

r opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial information
certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As

required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other

auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, as noted in the
‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a)

(b)

©)

(d)

(e)

_®

We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and reports of the other auditors;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement
of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of
the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies,
none of the directors of the Group’s companies, incorporated in India, is disqualified as on
March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
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(2)

(h)

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India for the year ended March 31, 2021 except one
subsidiary to which section 197 is applicable, where in our opinion, the managerial remuneration paid
by the subsidiary company to its Managing Director for the year ended March 31, 2021 is in excess by
Rs 27.60 lakhs of the limits applicable and requisite approvals mandated under section 197 of the Act,
read with Schedule V to the Act. We have been informed by the management that the subsidiary
company proposes to obtain approval of the shareholders in its general meeting by way of a special
resolution;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us [and based on the consideration of the report
of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the
subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group, in its consolidated financial statements — Refer
Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements;

ii.  The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2021;

iii,  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, incorporated in India during the
vear ended March 31, 2021.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

¢

per Govind Ahuja

Partner

Membership Number: 048966
UDIN: 21048966 AAAACK 1287

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: July 13, 2021
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CARTRADE TECH LIMTED (FORMERLY
KNOWN AS MXC SOLUTIONS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly
known as MXC Solutions India Private Limited) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021, we have
audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly known
as MXC Solutions India Private Limited) (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™) and its
subsidiary companies as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Holding
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by the ICAI, and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
financial statements.

_———-Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
& & ASSiy pusolidated Financial Statements

A o

o AX(¢bmpany's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
:H}m‘]i‘\ ﬁzhjé l:nts is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
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reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies has, maintained in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over

financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAIL

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements of the
Holding Company, insofar as it relates to one subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in India,
is based on the corresponding report of the auditors of this subsidiary company incorporated in India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
per Govind Ahuja
Partner

Membership Number: 048966
UDIN: 21048966 AAAACK 1287

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: July 13, 2021



CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Umited ")
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
{All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Raratars Note March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 (Restated)
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 5,112.0% 4,969.24
{b} Capital work-in-progress A 49.30 19,20
{c} Goodwill EL 89,796.10 B89,796,10
{d) Other Intangible Assets 48 2,537.68 3,132.87
(&} Ripht of Use Assets 3 4,798.69 3,643.06
{f} Financial Assets
(i} investments 5 1,805.27 2,055.08
{ii) Other financial assets 6 2,456.30 495.98
(g} Deferred Tax assets {net) 24 654175 408.06
(h) Income Tax assets (net} 22 1,078.08 493.93
{1} Other non- current assets 8 198.70 217.59
Total Non - Current Assets 1,14,373.56 1,05,231.11
Current assets
{a} Inventories 6A 157.69 1.84
(b} Financial Assets
{i} Investments 5 62,743.69 27,419.52
{ii) Trade receivables 9 4,728.70 4,669.21
{iii} Cash and cash equivalents 10 2,199.41 1,552.08
{iv) Bank balance other than cash and cash 11 24847 207.27
equivalents mentloned above
v} Loans 7 4,530.00 3,785.00
{vi) Other financial assets [ 3,069.59 2,091.23
(c} Income Tax assets {net) 23 - 16848
(d) Other current assets 8 567.10 1,276.18
Total Current Assets 78,645.65 41,570.81
Total Assets 1,83,019.61 1,46,801.92
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equlty Share capital 12 358.43 344.93
(b} Instruments entirely In the nature of equity 12 3.880.06 3,490.34
{c} Other Equity 13A 1.63.779.31 1,22,218.86
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 1,62,017.80 1,26,054.23
Non Controliing Interests 138 8,219.19 65,958.53
Total Equity 1,76,236.59 13301276
Uabilitles
Non-current liabilities
{a} Financfal Liabllities
{i} Lease liabllities 32 4,639.90 3,457.24
{b} Deferred tax liabilities 24 631.03 788,79
{¢) Provisions 14 451.66 419.09
{d) Other non-current liabilities 17 13.69 491
Total non - Current Liabllities 5,736.28 4,675.03
Current liabllities
{a) Financial Liabilities
{i} Lease liabilities 3z 815.23 757,75
{7} Trade payables 15
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprisas and small 576 -
enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 2,223.14 1,556.25
enterprises and small enterprises
{iii) Other financial liabilities 16 5,869.67 4,931.93
- (b} Other current liabilities 17 1,796.67 1,130.35
{c} Provisions 14 335.87 327.85
Total Current Liabilities 11,046.34 5,114.13
Total Liabilities 16,782.62 13,789.16
Total Equity and Liabliities 1,93,019.61 1,46,801.92 |
Summary of significant accounting policies 23

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For §. R. Batlibol & Assoclates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration number! 101049W/E300004

per Govind Ahuja
Partner

Membership no: 048966
Place: Mumbal
Date: July 13, 2021
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CarTrade Tech Limited {formerly known as "MXC Sclutions India Private Limited ")
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended Earfhuguarendsd
Particulars Note Ma“h“; el March 31, 2020
. (Restated}
Income
Revenue from operations ; 18 24,968.32 29,828.20
Other income 19 3,184.04 2,003.20
Total Income 28,152.36 31,831.40
Expenses
Purchase of Stock-in-trade 6B 281.31 1,621.73
Changes in Inventories of stock-in-trade 6C (155.85) 92.32
Employee Benefits Expense 20 13,010.99 13,307.86
Finance Cost ] 21 429.78 348.94
Depreciation and amortisation expénse 4C 1,992.73 1,725.30
Other expenses 22 7,895.53 10,844.03
Total Expense 23,454.49 27,940.18
Profit before tax 4,697.87 3,891.22
Tax expense / (benefit) : 23
Current tax F 977.46 1,417.58
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods (232.76) 52.33
Deferred tax credit (6,387.31) (468.50"
Total tax expense [ (credit) (5,642.61) 1,001.02
Profit for the year 10,340.48 2,890.20
Other Comprehensive income / (Loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plans 76.27 5113
Income tax effect on above (18.19) {19.38)
Total Other Comprehensive Income 57.08 31.75
Total Comprehensive Income 10,397.56 2,921.95
Profit attributable to:
- Equity holders of the Parent 9,249.90 2,055.07
- Non-controlling interests 1,090.58 835,13
Other Comprehensive Income attributable to:
- Equity holders of the Parent 36.48 591
- Non-controlling interests 20.60 25.84
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to:
- Equity holders of the Parent 5,286.38 2,060.98
- Non-controlling interests ‘ 1,111.18 860.97
Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10/- each) 27
Basic {In Rs.} 22.37 5.30
Diluted {In Rs.) 19.46 4.77
Summary of significant accounting policies 23
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For 5. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP | For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants CarTrade Tech Limited {formerly known as "MXC
ICAl Firm Registration number: 101049W/E300004 \So!utions India Private Limited "}
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per Govind Ahuja vindy Sanghi Aneesha Menon
Partner Chalfman, r'vJanaging Chief Financial Officer
director and Chief and Director
Executive Officer
Membership no: 048966 DiN: 00303085 DIN: 07779195
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: July 13, 2021 Date: July 13, 2021 Date: July 13, 2021
}MJ. (L;‘,J-., i
Lalbahadur Pal
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
ACS: 40812
Place: Mumbai

Date: July 13, 2021
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CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited ")
Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
___March 31,2021 March 31, 2020 (Restated) |
A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit before Tax 4,697.87 3,891.22
Adlusted for: ¢
Dep're'c'iation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1,992,73 1,725.20
Share-based payment expense 654,82 1,254.13
Interest income on financial asset (ICD) carried at amortised cost (362.83) (233.83)
Interest Income - on Bank deposits (40.29) (20.10)
Interest Income - on security deposits (14.84) =
Interest Income - income tax refund (35.70) (34.38)
Interest income on financlal asset (Investment) carried at amortised cost (213.24) (89.37)
Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment {(Net) (0.59) (2.85)
Impairment allowance on financial assets 259.00 343,31
Bad debts written off {Nat) - 873
Liabilities no longer required written back (298.51) (72.78)
Interest expense on lease liabilities 429.78 344.75
Net gain on investment carried at fair value through Profit and Loss (2,018.01) {1,459.88)
; 352.32 1,763.03
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 5,050.19 5,654.25
Changes in working capital:
(Increase) in trade recelvables (305.49) (1,342.53)
Decrease / (Increase) in other asséts 737.18 (945.01)
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventory (155.85) 92.32
(Increase) in financial assets {3,048.48) -
Increase in trade payables 272.65 150.97
Increase / (Decrease) in other liabilities 665.71 (62.70)
Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities 1,236.25 (1,022.47)
Increase in provision for employee benefits 97.67 103.38
(500.36) (3,026.04) |
Cash from operations 4,549.83 2,628.21
Income tax paid (net) (1,029.14) (913.75)
Net Cash from Operating Activities 3,520.69 1,714.46
B, CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (544.40) {482.39)
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.59 2.80
Purchase consideration for business combination & {150.00)
Purchase of current investments (60,296.79) (1,31,462.19)
Proceeds from Sale of current investments 27,240.06 1,32,296.26
Fixed deposits with maturity period more than 3 months matured / (placed) (net) (41.20) -
Loan given (1,145.00) {1,204.55)
Interest income received 705.45 184.61
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (34,081.29) (815.36)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Issue of instruments in the nature of equity including premium 32,156.99 B
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital including premium 14,85 .
Interest portion of of lease liabilities (429.78) (344.75)
Principal portion of of lease liabilities (934.13) {760.92)
Net Cash from f (used in) Financing Activities 30,807.93 (1,105.67)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 247.33 (206.57)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,952.08 2,158.65
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (as per note 10) 2,199.41 1,952.08
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For For 5. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants C%“Trade Tech Limited (formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited ")
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CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited ")
Notes forming part of the Ce lidated financial stat ts as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1: About the Company

CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited "), ("CarTrade" or "the Company" or "the Parent Company") was incorporated on April 28,
2000 as a private Company domiciled in India, under the Companies Act, 1956, Its registéred office is at 12th Floor, Vishwaroop [T Park, Sector 304, Vashi, New Mumbai,
Thane, Maharashtra = 400 705,

The Company, along with its subsidiaries (together referred to as "the Group") operates an automotive digital ecosystem which connects automobile customers, OEMs,
dealers, banks, Insurance companies and other stakeholders. The Group owns and operates under several brands: CarTrade, CarWale, Shriram Automall, BikeWale,
CarTrade Exchange, Adroit Auto and AutoBiz. Through these platforms, the Group enables new and used automobile customers, vehicle dealerships, automotive
manufacturers and other businesses to buy and sell their vehicles in a simple and efficient manner,

The Company applied for a change in name to CarTrade Tech Private Limited and change in registered office address to 12th Flcor, Vishwaroop IT Park, Sector 304, Vashi,
New Mumbai, Thane, Maharashtra - 400 705,with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai which was approved on April 20, 2021.

On May 12, 2021, the Company converted from Private Company to Public Company vide fresh incorporation certificate issued by Registrar of Companies and the name of
the Company was changed to CarTrade Tech Limited.

These consclidated financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with resolution of Board of Directors on July 13, 2021,

2: Basis of preparation and consolidation

2.1

2.2

Basis of accounting and preparation

The Consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2021, have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division 1l of Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013, {Ind AS compliant Schedule l). The Group has prepared the consolidated financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going
cancern. The Directors consider that there are no material uncertainties that may cast doubt significant doubt over this assumption. They have formed a judgement that
there is a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities, which are measured at fair value, based
on their classification. (refer accounting policy 2.3 (Q) on financial instruments),

The Financial statements are presented in Indian rupees ("<") and all values are rounded to the nearest lakh, except when otherwise indicated,

Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and the entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to effect those returns through its power
of the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only Group;

i, has power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
il is exposed or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
jii. has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is presumption that majority of voting rights results in control. Te support this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

> The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

> Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

> The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

> The size of the group's halding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holding of other voting rights holders

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of contral.

Assets, [iabilities, income and expenses of the subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included on the consolidated financial statements from the date of
Group gains control until the date Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financlal statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses
accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments
are made to the group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all the entities used for the purpose of consolidation drawn up to same reporting date as that of the Parent Company. When the end of
reporting period of the parent is different from that of the a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same
date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidated the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:
Combine like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the
subsidiaries are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

Offsél_ (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent's portion of equity of each subsidiary, Business combinations policy
exolains how to account for any related goodwill.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting
from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that
réquires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and |osses
resuiting from intragroup ‘transactions
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EarTr‘a,d_e Tech Limited (formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited ")
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial st ts as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
! \Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCH) are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances Indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Ly ‘income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed off during the year are included in the consc lidated fi ial stat ts from the date the Group obtains control
ntil the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCH) are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
* results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

' [T

of the Group are el  in full on consc

* Allintragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to t

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, Is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group looses control over a subsidiary, it:

a. Derecognises the assets {including goedwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
b. Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

¢. Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded In equity

d. Recognises the fair value of the consideration received
€.
f.

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss
Reclassifies the parent’s share of comy ts previously recognised in OCl to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed off the related assets or liabilities.

| For list of entities consolidated and the Company's ownership Interest, refer note 39

23 | Summary of Significant Accounting policles

A | Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method, The consideration transferred in a busi bination is d at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fajr values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange of control of the acquiree, Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

| } . At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair value, except that:
)

. a.Deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrang are rec and ed in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income

Taxes and Ind AS 19 — Employee Benefits respectively.

‘b. Assets {or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that Standard.

| Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non- controlling interests in the acquire, and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquire (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

¢, Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise as 2 result of the acquisition are accounted in
accordance with Ind AS 12.

d. Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share - based payments arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based pa\rmef\t arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date

e, Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the related contract, Such valuation does not consider potential
renewal of thereacauired right. 1 *

Non- Controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measqred either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The cholce
of measurement hasis of made on transaction-bv-transaction basis.

£

When the consideration transferred by the Group includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent ation, it is recog d at fair value at the acquisition date.

Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that Is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial instruments, is measured at fair value
| with thanges in fair value recognised in-profit or loss in accordance with Ind AS 109. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, itis measured in
" accordance with the appropriate Ind AS and shall be recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent

reporting dates-and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

The su'ﬁsequér‘uf'aécuunt]ng for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as meas t period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Conti t ideration that is classified as equity is not ed at subsequent settlement dates and is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at fair value at subsequent reporting dates with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognized in profit or loss. 2

. When a busingss combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the
! resulting gain u‘_:'r lass, if any, is recognized in profit or loss, Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognized
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that Interest were disposed off,

If the initial aoi:ounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those pre isional amounts are adjusted during the meas. 1t period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities
are recbgnized, to reflect new Tiformation obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognized at'that date.

In case of bus:im'zss comhinatiqn“!ﬁvol\;iﬁg“ entities under common control the above palicy does not apply. Business combinations involving entities under common control
are acéountéﬂ' for using the Pooling of interests method. The net assets of the transferor entity or busi are acc d at their carrying amounts on the date of the
acqulsiiion 'stsi)ject to necessa-f\r adjustments required to harmonise accounting policies. Any excess or shortfall of the consideration paid over the share capital of the
transferor entity or business Is-recognised as Capital Reserve under equity.

o



CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited ")
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

Goodwill )
Goodwill arising on ‘an acquisition of a business s carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business (See note 2.3 A above} less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill Is allocated to each of the Group's cash generating units {or groups of cash generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination,

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be
impalred. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocate to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognized directly In profit or loss. Animpairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash- generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwlll is considered to have indefinite useful life and hence is not subiect to amortisation but tested for imoairment at everv renortine date
Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset Is treated as current when it is!
i. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

ii. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

fil, Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liability is current when:

. It s expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

ii. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

iiil. It is due to be $ettled within twelve months after the reporting period,

iv. There Is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The group has identified twelve months
as its operating cycle.

Foreign currencies

The Group's financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the parent company's functional currency.

Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Forelgn currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the reporting date and exchange gains and losses arising on
settlement and restatement are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currenties are not retranslated:

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as current investment at fair value at each balance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

- Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
The Group determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as unquoted financial assets measured at fair value.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, such as financial assets, and significant liabilities. Involvement of external valuers is decided
upon annually by the group management. Selection criterla include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professicnal standards are maintained. The
group management decides with the Group's external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case,

At each reporting date, the Group management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per
the Group's accounting policies. For this analysis, the Group management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents,

The Group management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is
reasonable.

The Group management present the valuation results to the Board of Directors and the Group’s independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions
used in the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disciosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or
liability and the level of the faj hierarchy as explained above.
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CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited ")

Notes forming part of the C

B

ed financial st ts as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

Revenue from Operations (Revenue from Contract with Customers)

“Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when services are delivered to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group

expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Group has generally concluded that it Is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically
controls services and sale of cars before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration, if any) allocated to that
performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration, if any, on account of various discounts and schemes
offered by the Group as part of the contract. Payment is generally received on sucseesful completion of services

er| f services:
i} Website services and fees includes the following:
a) Advertisment income : pertains to revenue generated from the display ads on company websites. The performance obligation is satisfied upon display of the
advertisernent, net commissions if any.
b) Lead generation revenue: pertains to fees for leads shared with and / or concluded for customers, ie lead generation, is recognized on the successful generation and
delivery of the lead as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.
¢} Managed solutions: Revenue from events, marketing, multimedia and digital services are recognised on rendering of services {point in time).
ii) Commission and related incomes includes the following:
a) Facilitation of auction of vehicles via its online and offline platforms and providing incidental ancillary services such as valuation and inspection. Revenue is recognised
upon rendering of service (point in time) as per terms of contract on accrual basis.
b) Collection of parking charges and non-refundable event participation charges from customers. The revenue is recognised upon rendering of service (over time).

Sale of goods:
sale of used cars : Revenue from sale of used cars Is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the vehicle

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods to the customer. The variable consideration Is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration Is subsequently resolved. Some of the contracts
with customer provide a right to customer of cash rebate/discount if payment is cleared within specified due dates.

Contract balances

- Trade receivables

A reciivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time Is required before payment of the
consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (I} Financial instruments — initfal recognition and subsequent measurement.

- Contract Assets
A contract asset Is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer, If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer befare the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional,

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from advertisement and lead revenue. Upon completion of the entire contract, the amounts recognised as
contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables.

- Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)} from
the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made
or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract

Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Other income

a) Dividend from invesments are recognised when the right to receive payment is established and no significant uncertainity as to collectibility exists.

b) Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable for all financial instruments measured at
amortised cost and other interest-bearing financial assets, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR), EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial Instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit or
loss.

¢} For gains on fair valuation of financial instruments through Profit & Loss, refer to the accounting policy in 2.3 Q.
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H .

Leases :
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, If the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, The Company recognises
|ease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease {i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use).It Includes office premises and
yards taken on rent. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and 1j I for any r ement of lease
liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the leasa term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variahle lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories} in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease
payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option
to purchase the underlying asset.

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Retirement and other employee benefits

i. Short term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of shill employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered by employees Is recognised during the period when the
employee renders the service. These benefits include compensated absences such as paid annual leave and performance incentives payable within twelve months.

ii. Post-employment benefits

Retirement henefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.
The group recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after
deducting thUserlribution already paid. If the contribution already pald exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is
recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reductionin future payment or a cash refund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and
the return on plan assets (excluding amounts Included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
i. The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
ii. The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset, The Group recognisesh the following changes In the net defined benefit
obligation as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss:

i, Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

ii. Net interest éxpe'nse orincome

fii. Other long-term employee benefits
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are
recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.

Taxes

i) Currenttax = _ -

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amo‘&ﬁ} are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in India where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

4
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
Current Income tax reia'dng to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
iteris @fe recognised in correlfation to the underlying transaction either in OC| or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The group shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax
treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment

Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT'} paid In accordance with the tax laws, which gives rise to future economic benefits in the form of tax credit against future income tax
liability is recognised as an asset in the Balance sheet only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off agalnst the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

i 18K ax

Deferred tax Is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

1. When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

Wi, In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with Investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it Is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

i, When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

ii. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiarles, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
avallable to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
gxtent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
{and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relatlng to items recogrﬂsed outside proﬂt or loss is recognised outside proﬂt or loss {either in other comprehensive income or In equity). Deferred tax items

The Group offsets deierred tax assets and deferred tax Iiahllltles if and only i it has a Iegaily enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

K Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment other than Freehold Land, is stated net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of purchase
price / cost of construction, including non-refundable taxes or levies and any expenses attributable to bring the assets to its working condition for its intended use.
Freehold land is stated at cost.

Subsequent costs are Included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as separate assets, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of
Profit and Loss at the time of incurrence.

Depreclation is provided for Property, Plant and Equipment so as to expense the cost over its useful life. The estimated useful lives, residual value and method of
depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year and any change in estimate is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis for Property, Plant and Equipment purchased and sold during the year. Depreciation s calculated on the straight-line method as
per the estimated useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

i} Computers - 3 Years

i} Furniture and Fixtures - 10 Years

iii) Vehicles -5 Years

iv) Building - 60 Years

v} Office equipment - 3to 5 Years

vi) Piant and equipment - 15 Years

vii] Leasehold Improvement - 60 months or lease period whichever is lower

The Group, based on management estimate supported by internal technical expert, depreciates office equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the

useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of
the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Property, plant and ethpment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset} is
included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

L Intangible Assets
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2021
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the
' date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally
generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the
expenditure Is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at |east at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to maodify the amortisation
period or 'mlethod, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

intangible assets with Indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either Individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The
assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to
finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Anintangible asset Is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Intangible assets are amortised as follows:
Computer software -3 Years

Customer contract -7 Years

Trade mark - 10 Years

M Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Traded goods comprises of used car: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

N Impairment of non-financial assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss {if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smaliest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recaverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

|f the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit] is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an Indication that previously recognised impairment losses no
longer exist or have decreased, If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited
50 that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, In which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Gooduwill is tested for impairment annually at each reporting dater and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. Impairment is determined for
goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than it's
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

(4] Provisions and Contingencies
A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by occurrence or non-
cccurrence of one or more uncertain fiture events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it Is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. A contingent asset is not recognized unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benafits will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits Is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the Restated Ind AS Consolidated Summary Statement,

if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions and contingent liabilitles are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

P

Share Based Payment

- -Equity-settled share based payments to employees (including senior executives) are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details

' regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled share based payments transactions are set outin Note 31

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments s expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest, The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss such that the
cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Payments Reserve.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not been met.
The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share,

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees are measured at the fair value of the services received, except where that fair value
cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the date the counterparty renders the
service.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value
through profit or loss,

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for
managing them.

In order for 2 financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OC!, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of
principal and interest {SPPIY on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business medel.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent ement, financial assets are classified into :

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments}

(i) Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss

{iii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
{iv} Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition [equity instruments)

i. Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to cellect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPl) on
the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amartization is inciuded in finance income in the
profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, balances with banks, and other financial assets.

ii. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both
collecting. contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling financial
assets.

Debt Instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, Fair value movements are recognized In the
other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of
profit & loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OC! is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding
FVTOCI debt instrument Is reported as interest income using the EIR method

Equity instruments at FYTOCI

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value, Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basls. The classification is
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

if the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit & loss

iil, Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are'measured at fair value through statement of profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income
on initial recognition.

In addition, the Group may elect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only
if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch').




CarTrade Tech Limited {formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited ")
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial ts as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2021

Iv. De-recognition

A financial as:set {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily de-r ised (i.e. 1 d from the Company's
balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

o The Group has transferred Its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the tisks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither

| transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When'the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The tlransferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing in:\rolvament that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and maximum
amount of consideration that the Comy could be required to repay.

1w Impalrmen_t'of financial assets:

In accordancei with Ind-AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and
credit risk exposure:

' - Financial assets that are debt instr and are d at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

- Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOC|

" Lease receivables under Ind-AS 17,

- Contract assets and trade receivables under Ind-AS 18,
- Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL.
- Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

' The Group foilrlows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

- Trade receivables, and
- All lease ivabl Iting from t tions within the scope of Ind AS 17.

' The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at

each reporting date, right fram its initial recognition.

For recognltlon of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether there has been a significant Increase in the credit risk

! since initial recogmﬂon |f eredit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,

lifetime ECL is used. If, in @ subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there Is no longer 2 significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECLIs a portion of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 manths after the reporting date.

ECLis the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive

{i.e., gl cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

- All contractial terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in
rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument.

- Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedint, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matriy is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical

! observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL Impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the period Is recognized as income/exp in the stat t of profit and loss {P&L). This amount is reflected
uder the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet p tion for various fi fal instri ts is described below:
The bal sheet pr tation for various fi jal instr is described below:

. - For financial assets measured as at amortised cost and lease receivables: ECLIs presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the

balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross
carrying amount.

- Loah commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. asa liability.

- Debt jnstruments measured at FVTOC!: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL
amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCL

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of
facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Group does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POC) financlal assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ erigination.

Financial liabilities and Equity instruments
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Initial Recognition and Measurement
Debt and equity instruments Issued by the Group are classified as elther financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
“and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
i. Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities, Equity instrurnents issued by a group
entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

ii. Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL,

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

« Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

= Financial liabilities at amortised cost {loans and borrowings)

Re-classification of Financial Assets

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are
equity instrument':s and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business mode| for
managing those gssets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Group's senior management determines change in the business model as a
result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Group's operations, Such changes are evident to external parties. A change In the business model occurs
when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

R Compulsorily Convertible preference shares
Compulsorily Convertible preference shares are recognised and included in equity since conversion option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent vears.

5 Cash dividend
The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of
the Company, As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it Is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in
eauity.

T Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash comprises gash on hand. Cash equivalents are short-term balances {with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into knewn amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

u Security Deposit
The Group at the time of buyer registration, collects refundable security deposits ("RSD") from prospective bidder, which entitles bidder to bid during auction. The RSD is
towards ensuring performance of the contract. As per contractual terms, the RSD Is refunded upon demand after adjustments of facilitation fee. The Group generally
accounts for unclaimed RSD upon completion of limitation period of 3 years. Security deposits are forfeited and treated as other Income, on the earlier of : expiry of three
years; or uncertainty ever repayment

\ Earning Per Share
Basic earnings per share has been computed by dividing profit or loss for the year by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings
per share has been computed using the weighted average number of shares and dilutive potential shares, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

w Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In application of Group's accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, the directors of the company are required to make judgements, estimations and assumptions
about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision or future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

A ludgments
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements
Operating lease commitments ~ Group asa lessee
The Group has entered Into lease agreements with [essor and has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease
term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the fair value of the asset, that it does not retains the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

B Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing Circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively

a) Impairment of non-financial assets:
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The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is
X any‘_gng[cgggqn of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit ('CGU’) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value In use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested Individually are accompanied together into the smallest Group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Group of assets ['CGU').

Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on which management has based its determination of
recoverable amount include estimated long term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take into account
past experience and represent management's best estimate about future developments.

b) Impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for financlal assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss rates. The Company uses judgements In making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculations based on Company's history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

c) Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized.
Significant management judgement Is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies, Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case law
and the potent]al'_outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore, the actual results may vary from expectations resulting in
adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax settiements and therefore the tax charge in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

d) Estimated useful life of property plant and equipment and Intangible assets

The charge in respect of perlodic depreciation/ amortization is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected residual valug at
the end of its life, Management at the time the asset is acquired/ capitalized periodically, including at each financial period/year end, determines the useful lives and
residual values of Group’s assets. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may affect their life, such as
rhanees in technnlney The actimated uceful life is reviewsd at leact anniiallv

e) Leases - Estimating the incr tal borrowing rate

The Company caninot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses ts incremental borrowing rate [IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is
the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment

f) Share-based payments

For the measurement of the fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant date, the Company uses a mostappropriate method (i.e. discounted cash
flow approach, comparable companies method, etc) for Employee Share Option Plan. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions are dependent on the terms of the scheme. Such assumptions include weighted average share price, exercise price, volatility, expected life option, risk
free Interest rate, etc

g)Provision for Expected credit loss

The Company creates provision based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar losspatterns (i.e., by customer type).

The Company will calibrate the customer to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.

h)Defined Benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefit and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations.
An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate
and future salaryincreases. Due to complexities involved In the valuation and its leng term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions, All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. The mortality rate is based on publicly
available mortality table in India. The mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Further salary increases and gratuity increases
are based on expected future inflation rates.

Mew and amended standards

(ilAmendments to Ind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions.

The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying Ind AS 116 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19
pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this
election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the change under Ind AS 116, if the
change were not a lease modification.

The amendments are applicable for annual reporting pericds beginning on or after the 1 April 2020. In case, a lessee has not yet approved the financial statements for issue
before the issuance of this amendment, then the same may be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after the April 1, 2019, For details refer note 32
{ilAmendments to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations ?

The amendment to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations clarifies that to be considered a business, an integrated set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that, together significantly contribute to the ability to create output. Furthermore, it clarifies that a business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs

These amendments are appi‘lcable to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after the
April 01, 2020 and to a isitions that occur on or after the beginning of that period, This amendment had no impact on the financial statements of the Group but may impact
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(iti) Amendments to Ind AS-1'and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states, “information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting
entity.” The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in combination with other Information, in the context
of the financial statements. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the primary users. These amendments had
no impact on the consolidated financial statements of, nor is there expected to be any future impact to the Group.

These amendments are applicable prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after the April 01, 2020. The amendments to the definition of material are not expected to have
a significant impact on the Group's financial statements,
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2.4 Summarised be.law are the te.statments made to the audited financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2020

Following is the impact on the Balance Sheet:
i As at Adjustments on As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 account of March 31, 2020
restatements (Restated)
Assets 1,45,097.35 1,704.62 1,46,801.97
Goodwill {refer note 1} 89,601.71 194.39 B9,796.10
Other Intangible assets (refer note 1) 1,622.64 1,510.23 3,132.87
Total Equity {Refer note 1,2 and 3) 1,32,096,92 915.84 1,33,012.76
Other equity 1,23,013.05 (794.09) 1,22,218.96
Non-controlling interest 5,248.60 1,709.93 6,958.53
Liabilities 13,000.43 788.79 13,789.22
Deferred tax liabilities {net) (refer note 1) - 788.79 788.79
Following is the impact on the Profit and Loss:
For the year ended Adjustments on For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 account of March 31, 2021
restatements (Restated)
Employee Benefits Expense 13,418.63 [110.77) 13,307.86
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,414.04 311.26 1,725.30
Profit before tax 4,091.72 200.49 3,891.22
Tax Expenses 1,169.44 (168.42) 1,001.02
Profit after tax 2,922.28 32.07 2,890.20
Impact on basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) (increase in EPS)
Particulars March 31, 2020
Earnings per share
Basic, profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders 0.45
Diluted, profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders 0.41

1 On February 6, 2018, the Group acquired 55.43% stake in Shriram Automall India Limited and completed the purchase accounting wherein the gross value of intangibles assets,
amortisation, non-controlling interests and resultant goodwill and deferred tax liability was not determined accurately. This has now rectified in these consolidated financial

statements as follows:

a. The fair value of customer contracts under Intangible Assets as on February 6, 2018 i.e. date of acquisition of Shriram Automall India Limited was incorrectly accounted as Rs.

2,267.73 lakhs instead of Rs. 4,446.53 lakhs.

b. Consequent to the change in the fair value of customer contracts, amortization thereon, for the year ended March 31, 2020 has changed from Rs. 323.96 lakhs to Rs. 635.22 lakhs
{Impact of the same for prior years as accounted in retained earnings is Rs. 46.05 lakhs and Rs. 311.26 lakhs pertaining to the years March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2019 respectively).
Based on the above, accumulated amortisation has increased by Rs. 668.56 lakhs at March 31, 2020 and Rs. 357.31 lakhs at March 31, 2019.

¢. No Deferred Tax Liabilities were recorded on customer contracts referred in point a above, Accordingly, Deferred Tax Liability of Rs. 1,144.98 lakhs has been recorded on date of
acquisition resulting in deferred tax charge to the statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2020 of Rs. 168.42 lakhs {The corresponding impact of Rs. 24.20 lakhs
and Rs. 163.57 lakhs for March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2019 respectively is adjusted in retained earnings)

d. Consequent to the adjustments mentioned in point a, b and ¢ above, Goodwill on consclidation of Shriram Automall India Limited as at March 31, 2018 {and all subsequent

years) has changed from Rs.10,569.13 lakhs to Rs. 10,763.51 lakhs, determined based on controlling stake acquired of 55.43% instead of 51% which was considered in the
preparation of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018. As a result of the above changes, Non-Controlling Interestin Shriram Automall India Limited as at March
31, 2020 changed from Rs. 5,248.60 lakhs to Rs. 6,002.22 lakhs and March 31, 2018 has changed from Rs. 4,129.60 lakhs to Rs. 5,091.23 lakhs (March 31, 2018, not presented in these
consolidated financial statements changed from Rs. 2,969,89 lakhs to Rs, 4,141.78 lakhs)

e, As a result of above, the total equity has reduced by Rs. 1,058.68 lakhs in March 31, 2019 ; Rs. 915.84 lakhs in March 31, 2020.

In January 2020, The Group had not accounted for the forfeiture of un-vested options amounting to Rs.110.77 Lakhs on resignation of an employee in the statement of profitand
loss for the year ended March 31, 2020 which has now been restated In these financial statements,

Further certain vested options were cancelled during the same year for which transfer from share based payment reserve to retained earnings were not accounted for .This has been
rectified in the financial statements. Glven that this is a material re-classification error within Total Equity, there is no separate disclosure required, however, the amount of
reclassification from share based payment reserve to retained earnings is Rs. 31.77 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2020,

The Group has disclosed Share Based Payment Reserve pertaining to employee share options of a subsidiary as a part of its own Share Based Payment Reserve instead of non-
controlling interest, This has been rectified in consolidated finacial statements. Given that this is a material re-classification error within Total Equity, there is no separate disclosure
required, however, the amount of reclassification from share based payment reserve to non-controlling interest is Rs. 513.88 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2019 and Rs. 442.43
lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2020.
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3: Property, plant and equipment

il S AR e = 3 Lease Hold Plant and Furniture and Dffice Total Property,Plant | Right to Use Assots
FaThclas o i Improvements Buildings Equipment flxtures Wahices eguipments Campitar and Equipment (Refer note 32)
Cost or Valuation
Balance as at April 1, 2019 4,015.96 795.59 258.83 53179 317.23 4,16 388.10 710.36 7,028.52 .
Additions 5 - 4.10 11421 124.78 23.01 99.07 112,43 55020 4,829.57
Disposals [114.21) - - (o.80} - - .08 (201.04 (402.90)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 3,901.75 799.69 373.04 662,17 340.24 103.23 507.50 137168 4,426.67
Additions - 21.13 = 0.96 525 13349 4359 421.55 2,223.23
Disposals - (17.82)| - o] (12,95} - (3.00) (53.57} 125.69)|
Balance os at March 31, 2021 3,901.75 £803.00 373.04 661,43 333.54 236.72 548.09 7,745.66 6,623.21
[Accumulated Dapreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2019 - 703.43 25.91 354.81 206.32 398 306.38 671.00 2,271.92 -
Depreclation expense - 0.34 1812 74.34 2410 366 42.92 41.87 223.35 B34.12
Eliminated on disposal of assets = - A {0.40] = - {0.05}) (86,34} 86.83 {50.51)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 - 723.77 42.03 420.75 23042 7.64 349.21 626.62 2,408.44 783,61
Depraciation expanse TR E 17.36 5.79 10.29 23.92 2455 46,02 145.21 273.14 1,040,91
Eliminated on disposal of assets - {17.66) = (1,03 {8.10) - (2.60) (17.62}| {4&@1{ -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 - 723.47 47.82 438,01 245.24 32.19 39263 754.21 2,633.57 1,824.52
Net book value
As at March 31, 2021 3,501,735 7953 325.22 223.42 8530 20453 155.46 133.88 5,112.09 #4,798.69
|#As at March 33,2020 3,900.75 15,92 33101 233.42 209,82 9555 ___15829 5344 4,363,24 3,643,06 |
3A. Capital Work-In-Progress
Particulars - . Amount |
Balance as at April 3, 2019 =
Additions 1820
Transfer to Property, Plant and Equipment =
Balance as at March 31, 2020 19.20
Additions i 49,30
Transfer to Property, Plant and Equipment 119.20)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 4252
44, Goodwill
Particulars Amount
Gross carrying valus
Balance as on April 1, 2019 £9,767.51
Acquisiton through business combination {refer note 38 and note v below) 28.59
Balance as on March 31, 2020 {Restated) 89,756.10
Additions =
Disposals =
Balonce as on March 31, 2021 89,756.10
Net book value
As at March 31, 2021 B9,796.10
As at March 31, 2020 (R ) . B5,796.10
Mate
() The Group has dwill is ised goodwill g i on account of busi ik The ble amount of Jwill have been determined bused on value in use calculations which uses cash flow projections covering
generally a period of five years which are based on key assumptions such as margins, expected growth rates based on past experl and 's fi I of normal i fsteady terminal growth rate and
appropriate discount rates that reflects currant market assessments of time value of money. The management believes that any reasonable possible change in key fens on which ble amount is based Is not expected to cause

the aggregate catrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the cash generating unit. Refer to the further details on individual business combinations below,

{ii) The goodwil! of Rs, 78,409.26 lakhs was created on of e Exch Private Limited {'AEPLY) In FY 2015-16, which has since been merged with the Company with an appointed date of Aprll 1, 2017. By acquisition of this
brand the Company was able to bring sy-nergues af the brand name and trade mark as well as that of their franchisee business. Accordingly, for the purpose of testing impai of goodwiil all: d to this the "website services
and fees” Is Idered as one Cash g Unit {CGU), The recoverable amount of this CGU Is determined based on fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use as per requirement of Ind AS 36. The far value is computed as per

Discounted Cash Flow method. Due to use u!smrﬁcant unobservable input to compute the falr value, it Is classified as lavel 3 in the fair value hierarchy as per the requirement of Ind AS 113. Refer to the key assumptions below:

|Particulars FY 20-21 FY 15-20
Parpetulty Growth 5.00% 5.00%
Cost of Equity of Company 14.80% 14.465%)

{ili} Goadwill of Rs, 16,763.51 lakhs has been created on acquistion of Shriram Automall India Limited which pertains to facilitation of auction of vehicles, identified as separate CGU for the purpase of impairment testing. The recoverable

amount of this CGU Is determined based on fair value less cost of dispoesal as per requirement of Ind AS 36.The fair value Is computed as per Discounted Cash Flow method. Due to use of sig unehbs le Input to pute the falr
yalue, it Is classified a5 level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as per the requirement of Ind AS 113, Refer to the key assumptions below:

Particulars FY 20-21 FY 19-20

Growth rate 5.00% 5.00%

Cost of Equity of Company 17.20% 16.10%

(iv) Goodwill of Rs. 594,72 lakhs has been created on acquistion of Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited which pertains to valuation and inspection business, identified as sep CGU for the purpose of impalrment testing, The

recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based an fair value less cost of disposal as per requirement of Ind AS 36.The fair value is computed as per Discounted Cash Flow methad. Due to use of i input to

the fair value, it is classified as [evel 3 in the fair value hicrarchy as per the requirement of Ind A5 113,

(v) Goodwill of Rs. 2859 lakhs relates to Augeo Asset Management Private Limited which pertalns to asset business {id as sep CGUJ for the purpose of impalrment testing, the recoverable amount of this CGU Iz
determined based on fair value less cost of disposal as per requirement of Ind AS 36.The falr value is computed as per Discounted Cash Flow method. Due to use of slgnificant unobservable input to compute the fair value, it is classifled as level
3 In the fair value hierarchy as per the requirement of Ind AS 113.
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4B : Other Intangible Assets

Description of Assets Customes Trademark Computer Software Total
contract

Cost - _
Balance as at April 1, 2019 4,446.53 10.54 763.08 5,220.15
Additions - e 30.61 30.61
Disposal - - - =
Balance as at March 31, 2020 (Restated) 4,446.53 10.54 793.69 5,250.76
Additions = 1.12 82.37 83.49
Disposal - - = .
Balancea rch 31, 2021 4,446.53 11.66 876.06 5,334.25
Amortisation expense
Balance as at April 1, 2019 729.20 4,01 716.85 1,450.06
Amortisation expense 635.22 1.02 31.59 667.83
Disposal - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 (Restated) 1,364.42 5.03 748.44 2,117.89
Amortisation expense 635.22 0.64 42.82 678.68
Disposal - - . %
Balance as at March 3 1 1,999.64 __5.67 791.26 2,796.57
Net book value
As at March 31, 2021 2,446.89 5.9 84.80 2,537.68
As at March 31, 2020 (Restated) 3,082.11 5.51 45,25 3,132.87
4C: Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Particular For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 273.14 223.35
Depreciation of Right of Use Assets 1,040.91 834.12
Amortization of Other intangible assets 678.68 667.83
Total 1,992.73 1,725.30

Note : The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its Property, Plant & Equipment as recognised in its previous GAAP financial statements as

deemed cost on the transition date i.e. 01 April 2018
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5. Investrnents

t ts as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars
ary Current Non Current ary Current Non Current |
Quoted Investments
Investment in debentures at fair value through profit or loss
Mon-convertible debentures of % 1,000 each fully paid up in Shriram Transport Finance
Corporation Limited {refer note a below) 2,17,607 _552.57 180527 2,17,607 = 2,055.08
Quoted Investments Carried At FVTPL [A] 552.57 1,805.27 - 2,055,08
Unguoted Investments
Investments in subordinated debts , at amortised cost (refer note b below)
Shriram Transport Finance Company Limited - - - 21,333 250,50 =
Shriram City Union Finance Limited - - - 7,735 90.52 -
Unguoted Investments Carried At Amortised Cost [B] - - 341.02 s
Investments in Mutual Funds, at fair value through profit and loss
HDFC Liquid Fund- Growth (of Rs. 1000/- each) 2,771,228 11,138.13 - 11,771 457.17 -
ICIC1 Prudential Liquid- Regular Plan- Growth (of Rs, 100/- each) 36,07,110 10,831.10 - 36,07,109 10,550.80 i
Birla Sun Life Cash Plus- Growth-Regular Plan (of Rs. 100/- each) 35,42,063 11,664.34 - 35,42,063 11,254.75 -
D5P BlackRock Liguidity Fund- Institutional Plan- Growth (of Rs. 1000/- each) 3,57,742 10,444.84 - 1,46,901 4,145.78 =
ICICI Money Market Growth (of Rs, 100/- each) 17,37,404 5,091.84 - - - -
HOFC Ultra Short term (of Rs. 10/- each) 5,42,08,270 6,421.62 - - - -
DSP Low duration fund {of Rs. 10/- each) 3,28,39,296 5,098.30 - - - -
Axis Bank overnight fund {of Rs. 1000/- each) 1,28,742 1,400.85 - - - -
* Axis Bank liguid fund {of Rs. 1000/- each) - - - 63,476 670.00
Unguoted Investments Carried At FVTPL [C] 62,191.12| - 27,078.50 =
Total Quoted / Unquoted Investments [A+B+C] EZ.?dB‘EQi 1,805.27 27.419.52| 2,055.08|
Aggregate book value of quoted inve 1 552,57 1,805.27 - 2,055.08
\Aggregate market value of quoted investments 552,57 _1805.27 - 2,055.08
\Aggregate value of unquoted investments £62,191.12 - 27,419.52 -
|Aggregate value of impairment in value of i 1: - - - a
Note:-

a) The Group has 2,17,607 units of non convertible debentures of Shriram Transport Finance Corporation Limited having face value value of INR 1,000 each as on March 31, 2021 Rs. 2,176.07 lakhs and

interest rate in between 8.7%t0 9.7% p.a,

b) Subordinated Debts carry Interest in the range of 10.85% to 11.8% payable in various instalments ranging between monthly and annually and are due for maturity at the end of 78 months from the date

of investment. These subordinated debts are redeemable only on maturity.

Category-wise investments

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

I Current Non Current Current Non Current
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Unquoted subordinated debts (The Group has deemed that carrying amount approximates fair i} i} 34102 n
value) r
Financial assets carried at FVTPL
Mutual funds 62,191.12 - 27,078.50 -
Non Convertiable Debentures 552.57 1,805.27 - 2,055.08
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

... _(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

" 6. Other Financial assets (Unsecured)

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Particulars
Current MNon Current Current Mon Current
a) Security Deposits
- Considered good 28.52 390.92 12.01 399.67
- Items with significant increase in credit risk 3.05 - 3.05 -
31.57 390.92 15.06 399.67
Less -Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful Security
Deposit) {3.05) - (3.05) -
28.52 390.92 12.01 399.67
b) Interest accrued on Inter Corporate Loan 31.54 - 156.90 -
c) Interest accrued on Fixed Deposits 0.02 24,89 118 -
d) Interest receivable on non convertible debentures 26.15 34,10 20.25 -
e) Interest accrued on Sub ordinated debts - - 27.88 -
f} Contract Assets
- Considered good 2,786.74 - 1,796.04 -
- ltems with significant increase in credit risk 45.92 - 60.17 “
2,832.66 - 1,856.21 -
Less -Impairment Allowance {allowance for bad and doubtful Contract
Assets) (45.92) - (60.17) -
2,786.74 = 1,796.04 -
g) Loan and advances to employees
- Considered good 25.82 1.30 38.60 7.19
- Items with significant increase in credit risk 6.24 - 6.24 -
32.06 1.30 44.84 7.19
Less -Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful loans and
advances to employees) (6.24) - (6.24) -
25.82 1.30 38.60 7.19
h} Other bank deposits - 2,005.09 - 89,12
i) Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits 1.16 T = =
j) Others (contractually reimbursable expenses) 10.63 - 38.36 5
k) Fees for IPO related services, recoverable from selling shareholders (refer
note below) 159.01 =
Total 3,069.59 2,456.30 2,091.23 495.98

Note:- Fees for IPO related services, recoverable from selling shareholders comprises expenses incurred in connection with proposed Initial Public offer
(IPQ) of the Company. As per understanding between the Company and the Selling Shareholders, all the IPO expenses other than listing fees will be

borne by the Selling Shareholder -

6A. Inventories

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Traded goods (at lower of cost or net realisable value) 157.68 1.84
Total 157.69 1.84
6B. Purchase of stock;in-trade

Particulars As at March 31,2021 As at March 31, 2020
Purchases 281.31 1,621.73
Total 281.31 1,621.73
6C. Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Particulars As at March 31,2021 As at March 31, 2020
Inventory at the beginning of the year (A) 1.84 94.16
Inventory at the end of the year (B) 157.69 1.84
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade (A-B) (155.85) 92.32




CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

7. Loan (Current)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Inter Corporate Loan to Shriram Transport Finance Company Limited (refer 4,930.00 3,785.00
note a below) .

Total 4,930.00 3,785.00
Note:

a) Inter Corporate Loan to Shriram Transport Finance Company Limited is unsecured and repayable on demand for the purpose of earning interest of

7.50% over investments.

b} No loan are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any loan are due from firms or
private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Movement of Provision for doubtful Security deposits, Contract assets and loan and advances to employees:

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Balance at the begning of the year
- Security deposits 3.05 - 3.05 .
- Contract Assets 60.17 = ~ =
- Loan and advances to employees 6.24 - - -
Total 69.46 - 3.05 -
Provided/(reversed) during the year 2
- Security deposits - - - -
- Contract Assets (14.25) - 60.17 -
- Loan and advances to employees - - 6.24 -
Total (14.25) - 66.41 .
Balance at the end of the year
- Security deposits 3.05 - 3.05 :
- Contract Assets 45,92 " 60.17 &
- Loan and advances to employees 6.24 - 6.24 F
Total 55.21 = 69.46 -
8. Other assets (Unsecured, considered good)
. As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars
Current Non Current Current Non Current
a) Indirect taxes recoverable 89.39 34.28 856.85 34.28
b) Prepaid expenses 179.71 143.89 101.10 171.99
c) Advance to vendors 296.79 - 318.23 -
d) Capital advances - 20.53 - 11.32
e) Others receivables 1.21 - = ”
Total 567.10 198.70 1,276.18 217.59




CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited ")
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

{All amounts in INR1akhs, unless otherwise stated)

9. Trade receivables

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Trade Receivable (Unsecured)

(a) Considered Good 4,729.70 4,669.21
(b) Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 803.21 558.45
: 5,532.91 5,227.66
Less: Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 803.21 558.45
Total 4,729.70 4,669.21
Movement in Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Particulars ABAE e et
_ March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 558.45 290.26
Add: Provision recorded during the year 259.00 283.14
Less: Provision written back/utilised during the year (14.24) (6.22)
Less: Bad-debts written off - (8.73)
Balance at the end of the year 803.21 558.45
Note:
(i) For details pertaining to related party receivables, refer note 35
(i) Trade receivable are non-interest bearing and are generally receivables on terms 0 to 90 days
10. Cash and cash equivalehts
i As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(a) Cash in hand 101.76 197.73
(b) Balances with bank
- In Current account 1,978.71 1,725.19
- In Deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months 118.94 29.16
Total 2,199.41 1,952.08
11. Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents mentioned above
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Other Bank Balance:

a) Deposit accounts with original maturity of more than 3 months but less 248.47 207.27

than 12 months. 4 _

b) Deposit accounts with original maturity of more than 12 months. 2,005.09 89.12
' 2,253.56 296.39

Amount disclosed as "Other financial assets" (2,005.09) (89.12

Total 248.47 207.27

v/
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

12. Equity

Particulars A3 RIRhR LIRS March 31, 2020
Units Rupees Units Rupees
Authorised Capital
(A) Equity Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 2,00,30,000 2,003.00 1,00,30,000 1,003.00
(B) Instruments entirely in the nature of equity
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10/~ each A series 20,00,000 200.00 20,00,000 200.00
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10/- each B Series 28,00,000 280.00 28,00,000 280.00
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10/- each C Series 40,00,000 400.00 40,00,000 400,00
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10/- each D Series 64,00,000 640.00 64,00,000 640,00
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10/- each E Series 40,00,000 400.00 40,00,000 400.00
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10/~ each F Series 1,29,00,000 1,290.00 1,29,00,000 1,250.00
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10/- each F1 Series 6,00,000 60.00 6,00,000 60.00
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10/- each G Serles 40,00,000 400.00 40,00,000 400.00
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10/ each H Series 40,00,000 400.00 - -
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up
{A) Equity Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 35,84,303 358.43 34,49,303 344.93
35,84,303 358.43 34,49,303 344,93

(B) Instruments entirely in the nature of equity
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10/- each A Series 19,32,120 193.21 19,32,120 193.21
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10/- each B Series 27,70,456 277.05 27,70,456 277.05
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10/- each C Series 36,57,066 365.71 36,57,066 365.71
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10/- each D Serles 59,64,300 596.43 59,64,300 596,43
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10/- each E Series 35,19,482 351.95 35,159,482 351.95
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10/- each F Series 1,28,79,955 1,288.00 1,28,79,955 1,288.00
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10/- each F1 Series 5,85,437 58.54 5,85,437 58,54
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10/- each G Series 35,94,499 359.45 35,94,499 359,45
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10/- each H Series 38,97,225 389.72 - s

3,88,00,540 3,880.06 3,49,03,315 3,490,34
TOTAL 4,23,84,843 4,238.49 3,83,52,618 3,835.27
(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

: As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars = E B
i No.of Shares Rupees No.of Shares Rupees

Equity shares
At the beginning of the year 34,48,303 344.93 34,45,303 344.93
Add: Issued during the year at a premium of Rs. 1/- per share 1,35,000 13.50 - -
At the end of the year 35,84,303 358.43 34,49,303 344,93
Instruments entirely in the nature of equity
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs 10/- each (Refer note below)
At the beginning of the year 3,49,03,315 3,490.34 3,49,03,315 3,490.34
Add: Issued during the year - Series H at a premium of Rs. 815.13 per share 38,97,225 385.72 - 5
At the end of the year 3,88,00,540 3,880.06 3,49,03,315 3,490.34

Note:- There has been no movement in any of the series of instruments in the nature of equity between April 1, 2019 till March 31, 2021 other than issue 38,97,225 Series H 8% Non
cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 10 each during the year ended March 31, 2021

4
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(ii} Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

As at March 31,2021 As at March 31, 2020
Class of shares / Name of shareholder Number of shares | % holding in that| Number of shares| % holding in that
held class of shares held class of shares
Equity shares
William Austin Ligon 1,92,730 5.38% 1,92,730 5.59%
Vinay Vinod Sanghi with Seena Vinay Sanghi 7,16,717 20.00% 4,50,050 13.05%
Bina Vinod Sanghi with Vinay Vinod Sanghi 1,83,333 5.11% 4,50,000 13.05%
Shree Krishna Trust 7,00,050 19.53% 7,00,050 20.30%
Highdell Investment Ltd 6,11,981 17.07% 6,11,981 17.74%
Macritchie Investments Pte. Ltd, 5,92,650 16.53% 5,92,650 17.18%
8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares [Serles A to H)
CMDB I 56,75,595 14.63% 56,75,595 16.26%
Highdell Investment Ltd 1,58,25,768 40.7%% 1,45,26,693 41.62%
MacRitchie Investments Pte, Ltd, 1,21,33,327 31.27% 1,08,34,252 31.04%
Springfield Venture International 31,82,038 8.20% 31,82,038 9.12%

{iii) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
(a) Veting rights

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder

is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of

Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to

receive the remaining assets of the Company, in proportion of their shareholding.

{b) Dividend distribution rights:

The Company in general meeting may declare dividends, but no dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the Board.
Subject to the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board may from time to time pay to the members such interim dividends as appear to it to be justified by the

profits of the company.

{iv) Terms of conversion/ redemption of Instruments entirely in the nature of equity

|Series

Conversion ratio

Conversion period

Series A Preference shares are compulsorily convertible preference shares.

Series B Preference shares are compulsorily convertible preference shares.

Series C Preference shares are compulsorily convertible preference shares.

Series D Preference shares are compulsorily convertible preference shares.

Series E Preference shares are compulsorily convertible preference shares.

Series F Preference shares are compulsorily convertible preference shares.

Series F1 Preference shares are compulsorily convertible preference shares.

Saries G Preference shares are compulsorily convertible preference shares.

Series H Preference shares are compulsorily convertible preference shares.

11

11

11

11

1:1,1125624

11

11

11

At any time during the conversion period of 20 years from the date of
issue ie. 08.12.09 and 11.01.10 or on the expiry of the conversion
period or immediately prior to the filing by the Company of its red
herring prospectus dacument with SEBL.

At any time during the conversion pericd of 20 years from the date of
issue i.e. 15.12.10 or on the expiry of the conversion period or
immediately prior to the filing by the Company of its red herring
prospectus document with SEBI.

At any time during the conversion period of 20 years from the date of
issue i.e. 2.9.11 or on the expiry of the conversion period or immediately
prior to the filing by the Company of its red herring prospectus
document with SEBI.

At any time during the conversion period of 20 years from the date of
issue ie. 9.10.14 or on the expiry of the conversion perlod or
immediately prior to the filing by the Company of its red herring
prospectus document with SEBL

At any time during the conversion period of 20 years from the date of
issue l.e. 4.8.15 and 25.8.15 or on the expiry of the conversion period or
immediately prior to the filing by the Company of its red herring
prospectus document with SEBL :

At any time during the conversion period of 20 years from the date of
issue e 12.1.16 or on the expiry of the conversion period or
immediately prior to the filing by the Company of its red herring
prospectus document with SEBL

At any time during the conversion period of 20 years from the date of
issue ie. 29.4.16 or on the expiry of the conversion period or
immediately prior to the filing by the Company of its red herring
prospectus document with SEBL

At any time during the conversion period of 20 years from the date of
issue i.e. 3.2.17 or on the expiry of the conversion period or immediately
prior to the filing by the Company of its red herring prospectus
document with SEBI.

At any time during the conversion period of 20 years from the date of
issue i.e. 5.6.20 and 01.10.20 or on the expiry of the conversion period
or immediately prior to the filing by the Company of its red herring
prospectus document with SEBI




CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited ")

Notes forming part of the Cansolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in.INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Rights of preference shares
Shareholders Agreement provides for transfer restrictions on shares held by parties. The Major Shareholders are not permitted to transfer any or all of the Restricted Shares without

offering a right of first refusal to each of CMBD, Springfield, Highdell, Temasek, FIOL, Manbro, MSF, MCP and/or their permitted transferees [“ROFR Investors”). In the event the ROFR
Investors do not exercise their right of first refusal, they are entitled to exercise a tag along right and sell their shareholding with the Major Shareholders.

Pursuant to theShareholders Agreement, each of the Major Shareholders, CMDB, Springfield, and certain other shareholders collectively, have the right to nominate one Director on the
Board. Highdell and Temasek have the right to nominate three directors each on to the Board. Further, each of CMDB, Highdell, Springfield, Temasek and the Major Shareholders are
entitled to nominate one observer each to the Board and all the committees of the Board, The Majority Investors and the Major Shareholders have affirmative voting rights in respect of
certain reserved matters including any alteration or change so as to adversely effect rights of Equity Shares, alteration or modification of authorized number of Equity Shares, fresh
issuance of any security, creation of any new class of or series of Equity Shares. If the Company declares any dividend, in any Financial Year, each holder of Preference Shares shall, on a
pari passu basis and subject to applicable Law, be entitled to recelve a non-cumulative preferential dividend at the rate of 8% (Eight Percent).

{v) Details, terms and conditions pertaining to Share Warrants

Share Warrant 1

‘The Board of Directors of MXC Solutions India Private Limited ("holding company") at their meeting held on 24 September, 2014 and as approved at its Extra Ordinary General Meeting
held on 24 September, 2014 had resolved to create, offer, issue and allot 800,000 warrants, convertible into 800,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each on a preferential allotment basis,
pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 at a conversion price of Rs. 117/~ per Equity share of the holding company, rights to Mr. Vinay Sanghi In accordance with the
terms of the Warrant subscription agreement and the application money amounting to Rs. 4.00 lakhs was recelved from him. The warrants may be converted into equivalent number of
shares after conversion date {l.e,, earlier of trigger date or 4 years from date of issue} upto period of 15 years from date of issue on payment of the conversion price. (Refer note 13A.4)
Share Warrant2.,

The Board of Directors of the Compnay at their meeting held on December 16, 2016 and as approved at its Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on December 20, 2016 had resolved to
create, offer, issue and allot 776,707 and 140,045 warrants, convertible into 776,707 and 140,045 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each on a preferential allotment basis, pursuant to the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 at a conversion price of Rs. 510/- and Rs. 556/- respectively per equity share of the Company, rights to Mr. Vinay Sanghi in accordance with the
terms of the warrant subscription agreement and the application money amounting to Rs. 0.46 Lakhs was received from him. The warrants may be converted into equivalent number of
shares after conversion date (i.e., earlier of trigger date or 4 years from date of issue} upto period of 15 years from date of issue on payment of conversion price. (Refer note 13A.4)

For information pertaining to subsequent events in relation with the Share Capital, refer note 43
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13A. Other equity

As at As at
P h 31, 202
articulars March 31, 2021 MercestatEd) o
{a) Sg curities premium 1,77,225.34 1,45,456.71
|(b) Share based payment reserve (refer note 31) T 2,725.81 2,326.67
(el Rétainea'eaf"inas : (15,601.27) (24,993.85)
{d) I\/]'o'ney received against share warrants 4.46 4.46
(e) Capital Reserve on consolidation 33.80 33.80
(f) Other reserves (608.83) (608.83)
Total 1,63,779.31 1,22,218.96
13A.1. Securities premium
| s As at
| As at
i Parti h 31, 2020
|! articulars March 31, 2021 March 31,
i (Restated)

Balarf)ce at beginning of year
Issueiof 8% Non-cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares - Series H
Issueiof Equity shares during the year on account of exercise of option

1,45,456.71
31,767.28
1.35

1,45,456.71

1,45,456.71

Balance at end of year (refer note a below) 1,77,225.34

!
13A.:|!._ Share based payment reserve (Refer Note 31)

4o g p— As at

4 Particulars March 31, 2021 Ma{];; tBaII:eZd?ZO
Balaﬁqe at beginning pf year 2,326.67 1,546.74
Recoépition of Share based payments 724.62 1,364.90
Optiéns forfeited during the year (refer note 2.4) (69.80) {110.77)
Reclassification of Share based payment reserve of subsidiary to non-controlling interest (149.48) (442.43)
Tra ns:fer from share based payment reserve to retained earnings on account of cancellation of (106.20) (31.77)
lvested options (refer note 2.4)
Balance at end of year (refer Note b below) 2,725.81 2,326.67
13A.§ Retained earnings

F '. g Asat i

: Particulars March 31, 2020

| March 31, 2021 (Restated)
Balance at beginning of year (24,993.85) (26,714.46)
Proﬂ% for the year 9,249.90 2,055.07
Adjustment pursuant to Ind AS 116 adoption (Refer note 32} g (400.73)
Transfer from share based payment reserve to retained earnings on account of cancellation of 106.20 31.77
veste‘d options (refer note 2.4}
Adju:':.tment towards Augeo Asset Management Private Limited acquisition (Refer note 38) - 28.59
Other ¢tomprehensive (Loss} / income arising from remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 36.48 5.91
(net of income tax)
Balance at end of year (15,601.27) (24,993.85)

; :
13A.t!l Monéy received against share warrants (Refer Note 12 {v}))

| EE T R it As at

4 = - Particulars Miareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

; (Restated)
Balance at beginning of year 4.46 4.46
Monéy received during the year . - :
Balance at end of year 4.46 4.46

%
| Ml_&lﬂ{-‘.-;u %
e

B
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i i
il

13A.5 Capitél Reserve on consolidation

Asat il
il 14 ; Particulars March 31, 2020
i 4 March 31, 2021
it L = (Restated)
Balarice at beginning of year 33.80 33.80
Balance at end of year (Refer note c below) 33.80 33.80
13A.6 Other reserves
As at Asat
! Particulars March 31, 2020
| : March 31, 2021 (Restated)
Balance at beginning of year (608.83) {608.83)
Balance at end of year (Refer note d below) (608.83) {608.83)
13B; Non Controlling Interest
e Asat As at
| ko Particulars March 31, 2020
i b ! March 31, 2021 (Restated)
Ba!ai"lce at beginning of year 6,958.53 5,605.13
Proft for the year 1,090.58 835.13
Other comprehensive (Loss) / income arlsmg from remeasurement of defined benefit obligation ) 20.60 25.84
{net of income tax)
Add:tlon pursuant to Augeo Asset Management Private Limited acquisition (Refer note 38) - 50.00
Reclassufcatlon of Share based payment reserve of subsidiary to non-controlling interest 149.48 442.43
Balap;ce at end of year 8,219.19 6,958.53
I

E o :
a.Securities premium
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as
issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
b.Shére based payment reserve
- The s'_hare options based payment reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under Employee
stocigf option plan.
c.Capltal Reserve on Consolidation
The Group recognizes profit or loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancelleation of Group's own equity instrument to capital reserve on
consolidation.

d.Otﬁner reserve
Othef reserves represent profit / loss on transfer of business between entities under common control taken to other reserve and excess of
consideration of carrying value on purchase of non-controlling interest

| ] %

e. ReiLained earnings -
Retaifned earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other
distributions paid to shareholders.

L
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
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14. Provision
i As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer note 29) 82.19 451.66 69.16 417.38
Compensated absences 253.68 - 258.69 1.71
Total 335.87 451.66 327.85 419.09
15, Trade Payables
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Trade payables
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 5.76 -
enterprises (refer note a below) :
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 2223.14 1,956.25
enterprises and small enterprises i
Total 2,228.90 1,956.25

a) Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 (MSMED Act)

Particulars

For the year ended

March 31, 2021

For the year ended

March 31, 2020

Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act

Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act on the
above amount

Payment made to suppliers {other than interest) beyond
appointed day during the year

Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act

Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act
towards payments already made

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the

accounting year
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even

in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purpase of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the MSMED Act

5.76

Note

(i) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally settled on 0 to 60 days terms

{ii) Refer note 35 for trade payable to related parties

(iii) The amount due to Micro, Small and medium Enterprises is given to the extent the same is available with the Company.

16. Other Financial Liabilities

; As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars
! Current Non Current Current Non Current
(i} Security deposit received from customers 4,410.28 - 3,674.67 -
(i} Employee related liabilities 1,459.39 - 1,257.26 -
Total 5,869.67 . 4,931.93 -
17. Other Liabili'ties (Unsecured, considered good)
y As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars
Current Non Current Current Non Current
(i) Advances received from customers 47.95 - 43.70 -
(i) Deferred Revenue ' 872.58 e 586.63 -
{iii) Statutory Dues 873.51 - 501.78 -
(iv) Employee Peposit." . 13.69 - 9.91
(v) Creditors for Property, Plant and Equipme 2.63 - 8.24 -
Total ; ' 1,786.67 12.69 1,140.35 9.91

v




CarTrade Tech Limited {formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited ")

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Alllamiounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

18 Re?enu'e from operations (Revenue from contracts with customers}

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Revenue from rendering of services
(i) Website services and fees 8,819.61 9,910.04
(ii) Commission and related income (refer note b below) 16,018.66 18,165.69
Revenue from sale of Goods
(i) Sale of Used cars 130.05 1,752.47
Total 24,968.32 29,828.20
Note

(a) Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that companies report information about operating segments and related disclosures about products and
services and major customers. The Company’s operations pre-dominantly relate to automotive digital systems which connect automobile customers,
OEMs, dealers, banks, insurance companies and other stakeholders, pertaining to sale of cars, trucks and commercial vehicles. Based on internal reporting
provided to the Chief operating decision maker, the Company’s operations predominantly relates to single reportable operating segment which are
subject to same risk and rewards of operating and managing a media / platform for the automotive sector through website fees and commission anc

related services and trading of cars.

(b) Commission and related income includes revenue of Rs. 4,414.76 lakhs (March 31, 2020 Rs. 4,013.92 lak‘hs) over period of time for parking and

registration fees.

18.1 Performance Obligations: for the details pertaining to performance obligation refer note 2.3 (f)

18.2 Contract Balances

T For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
. Trade Receivables 4,729.70 4,669.21
. Contract Assets (Net of allowance for bad and doubtful debts of Rs. 45.92 lakhs (March 31, 2,786.74 1,796.04
- 2020 Rs. 60.17 lakhs))
* Contract Liabilities (920.53) (630.33

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 90 days. In March 31, 2021, Rs. 803.21 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 558.45

lakhs) was recognised as provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

Contract liabilities consists of Advance from customers and deferred revenue.

The Group have rendered the service and have recognised the revenue of Rs. 586.63 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2021 and Rs. 488.87 lakhs in
March 31, 2020. It expects similarly to recognise revenue in year 2021-22 from the closing balance of deferred revenue as at March 31, 2021.

The Group usually renders services against the advance from customers within the next reporting period.

4




CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited ")

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

19. Other Income

Pariieilsee For the year ended | For the year ended March
March 31, 2021 31, 2020
‘Interest income
' Bank deposits 40.29 20.10
'fﬁnancial asset (ICD) carried at amortised cost 362.83 233.83
;Income Tax Refund 35.70 34.38
Security Deposits 14.84 -
financial asset (Investment) carried at amortised cost 213.24 89.37
Loans to employees 1.84 2.75
§ 668.74 380.43
‘Net gain on investment carried at fair value through Profit and Loss
Gain on fair valuation of investment in mutual fund 1,701.57 1,435.89
‘Gain on sale of investment in mutual fund 13.69 23.99
iGain on fair value of investment in non-convertible debentures 302.75 %
f 2,018.01 1,459.88
EOther Non-Operating Income
.iLiabiIities no longer required written back 298.51 72.78
Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) 0.59 2.85
‘Miscellaneous Income 198.19 87.26
497.29 162.89
Total 3,184.04 2,003.20

Note: All components of Other Income included above, other than Miscellaneous Income are recurring in nature

20.?Emplovee benefits expense

For the year ended

For the year ended March

RarHedlas March 31, 2021 31, 2020 (Restated)
Salaries , wages and bonus 11,482.90 11,088.71
Gra:tuity (refer note 29) 167.20 151.66
Contributions to provident and other funds 517.13 518.84
Sha’ire-based payments to employees (Refer Note 31 and note 2.4) 654.82 1,254.13
Staff welfare expenses 188.94 294.52
Total 13,010.99 13,307.86

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received
Pre%sidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come
into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code
whén it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective. Based on a preliminary assessment,

the entity believes the impact of the change will not be significant.

21. Finance cost

For the year ended | For the year ended March
Particulars
March 31, 2021 31, 2020 (Restated)
Interest expense on financial liabilities (lease liability) ~429.78 344.75
Interest on others - 4.19
Total 429.78 348.94




CarTrade Tech Li'r_n'itéd {forfnerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited ")

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

22, Other expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2021 Ma{:::s?alt,ezd?zo
Power and fuel 204 166.97 225.79
Rent (Refernote32) . | 557.67 566.61
Royalty paid . || 141.08 159.97
Commission and related expense 234.63 602.11
Security charges 1,497.70 1,883.67
Inspection and Valuation Charges 878.36 931.01
Repairs and maintenance - Others 232.16 230.89
Directors Sitting Fees =+ | 4.45 3.30
Insurance 59.96 40.08
Rates and taxes 88.88 232.98
Communication 228.15 294.85
Travél_ling and conveyance 355.59 1,253.72
Legal and professional fees | 975.67 695.53
Payments to auditors (Refer Note 25) 78.20 57.29
Advertisement, Marketing and Sales Promotion Expenses 1,317.81 2,406.71
Corporate social responsibility expenses (Refer note 26) 80.82 53.62
Business Outsourcing Expense 175.28 236.69
Website Hosting Charges 252.37 231.12
Impairment allowance on financial assets 259.00 343.31
Bad Debts Written Off 5 8.73
Bank Charges = .., 38.35 69.96
Mehbership and Subscription fees 50.05 30.19
Miscellaneous expenses 222.38 285.90
Total 7,895.53 10,844.03




CarTrade Tech Limited {(formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited ")

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All: amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

v

23. Income Tax

i) Income tax recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended March
| March 31, 2021 31, 2020 (Restated)
Current tax - _
In respect of the current year 977.46 1,417.59
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods (232.76) 52.33
Current tax (A) 744,70 1,469.92
Deferred tax i
Deferred tax on temporary differences (472.27) (468.90)
Initial recognition of deferred tax asset consequent to revision in estimate (Refer note (iii) below) {5,915.04) -
Deferred tax (Credit) (B) (6,387.31) (468.90)
Total income tax (Credit)/expense (A+B) (5,642.61) 1,001.02
ii) The Income tax expense for the period can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
For the year ended For the year ended March
Particulars March 31, 2021 31, 2020 (Restated)

Profit before tax 4,697.87 3,891.22
Rate of tax 29.59% 29.30%
Income tax expense at enacted tax rate 1,390.02 1,140.18
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit (246.75) 251.34
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit, but not claimed as an expense in (638.08) (452.00)
books :
Initial recognition of deferred tax on account of revision in estimate (Refer note [iii) below}
a. unused tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation of earlier years (6,455.00) -
b. other items of earlier years 539.96 -

. : {5,915.04) -
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of prior years (232.76) 52,33
Others - 9.17
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (5,642.61) 1,001.02

iii} Till March 31, 2020, the Parent Company did not recognise deferred tax asset (‘DTA') in its standalone financial statements on the timing differences mainly
arising from brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation due to the absence of reasonable certainty in accordance with Ind-AS 12. Pursuant to the
changes in the Finance Bill 2021, goodwill of a business or profession is not to be considered as depreciable asset and no depreciation to be allowed in any situation
for assessment years beginning on April 1, 2020. Depreciation on goodwill was one of the larger components contributing to accumulation of losses till foreseeable
future for the Company. Given this proposed change in law, the Company has revised its estimate with respect to utilization of certain portion of its brought
forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation relating to earlier years, to the extent it can be offset against future taxable profits and has accordingly recorded a
Deferred Tax Asset of Rs. 6,455.00 lacs during the year ended March 31, 2021 in view of reasonable certainty based on revised estimates due to change in law.
Further, the Company has also recognised net deferred tax liability of Rs. 539.96 lacs which was hitherto not recognised due to the lack of reasonable certainty of
realisahility of brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation.

iv) Pursuant to the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019, corporate assesses have been given the option under section 115BBA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 to
apply lower income tax rate with effect from 01 April 2019, subject to certain conditions specified therein. The Company has assessed the impact of the Law and
has availed the beneficial {lower] rate of tax.

&




CarTrade Tech Limited llfot_'merl\r known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited ")
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
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24, Deferred tax balances

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 (Restated)
Deferred tax asset {net) (Refer note 24.1 below) 6,541.75 408.06
Deferred tax {liabilities) (Refer note 24.2 below} (631.03) (788.79)
24.1 Components of deferred tax assets (net}
i Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 (Restated}
Impact of employee related retirement and other liabilities 220.03 186.96
Financial instruments at fair value through Profit and loss -
Impact of Impairment allowance on trade recelvables and contract assets 202.15 140.57
Property, plant and eguipment: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation charged for financial . (33.43} 25.50
reporting ; |
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year but allowed for tax purposes on 178.48 311.68
payment basis
Impact of deferred tax on unused tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation (Refer note 24.4 and 24.5 below) 18,132.54 6,843.84
Impact of Deferred tax due on Ind AS 116 adjustments 27712 {233.54)
Others 136.12 136.84
Deferred tax liabilities:
Financial instruments at fair value through Profit and loss {892.69) {331.26)
Property, plant and equipment: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation charged for financial (1.02) *
reporting
Total deferred tax assets (net) 18,219.30 7,080.59
Less: Deferred tax assets {net), not recognised - Refer note 23 {lii) 11,677.55 6,672.53
Total deferred tax assets {net) recognised 6,541.75 408.06
24.2 Components of deferred tax liabilities
Particulars As at March 31, 2020
As at March 31, 2021
’ {Restated)
Impact of difference between tax amortisation and amortisation charged for financial reporting on intangible assets (631.03) (788.79)
created on purchase price allocation ’
Total deferred tax liabilities recognised (631.03) (788.79)
24.3 Reconciliation of deferred tax assets :
P rﬁcular-s For the year ended For the year ended
‘ ] March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Opening balance x i 408.06 104.19
Tax income during the year recognised in profit & loss 6,118.15 284.49
Tax income during the year recognised in OCI 15,54 15.38
Closing balance 6,541.75 408.06
24,4 Unused tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation, are attributable to the following:
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Unabsorbed Depreciation {no expiry limit) 45,137.05 45,137.05
Unused tax losses {see below) 26,494.10 26,977.05
24.5 Breakup of expiry of balances As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Amount Amount
2020 - 482,95
2021 1,257.68 1,257.68
2022 1,563.18 1,563.18
2023 6,792.04 6,792.04
2024 13,152.04 13,152.04
2025 2,478.49 2,478.49
2026 1,0892.15 1,092,15
2027 158.52 158.52
Total * Ty 26,494.10 26,977.05
25, Payment to auditors
Partlcula.rs For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
To statutory auditor
i) For Auditfees 74.50 35.70
ii} For Limited review 10.50 10.50
ii} For Other services 8.50 9.00
iii) For reimbursement of expenses 1.70 1.79
Less: Fees for IPO related services, recoverable from selling shareholders (17.50)
Total 77.70 56.99
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

2'6'_;:'Det:§:ﬂs of CSR expenses

Particulars «

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year (A) 67.52 53.62
Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 67.52 53.62
Amount spent during the year (B}
(1) Construction/acquisition of any assets - -
(2) Purpose other than (1) above 24.84 5.00
Total (B) 24.84 5.00

Details related to spent / unspent obligations:

Contribution to Public Trust 13.30 5.00
Contribution ongoing projects 11.54 -
Unspent amount in relation to:

- Ongoing project 55.98 48.62
- Other than ongoing projects - ~
Total 80.82 53.62

Details of CSR expenditure under Section 135(6) of the Act in respect of ongoing projects:

Opening balance
With the Group 48.62 -
In Separate CSR Unspent account - -
Amount required to be spent during the year 67.52 53.62
Amount spent during the year
From the Group’s bank account (73.46) (5.00)
From Separate CSR unspent account 2 -
Closing balance
With the Group 34.18 48.62
In Separate CSR Unspent account 8.50 .

Details of CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act in respect of other than ongoing projects:

Opening Balance

Amount deposited in Specified Fund of Schedule VII of the Act within 6 months
Amount required to be spent during
Amount spent during the year

Closing balance




CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited ")
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All:amounts in INR lakhs; unless otherwise stated)

27. Earnings per share (EPS)

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

ek e For the year ended
Particulars :n Ehv:f ze Onz 1e March 31, 2020
AL oS {Restated)

Profl.t attrlbl..stable to ordinary shareholders of the parent for basic A 9,249.90 2,055.07
earnings (Rs in lakhs)
Less : Adjustments for effect of dilution B - -
Prqfit attrfbuFable tc': equity holders of the parent adjusted for the C=A-B 9,249.90 2,055.07
effect of dilution (Rs in lakhs)
Weighted average number of Equity shares D 34,78,550 34,439,303
Add: Impact of ordinary shares to be issued upon conversion of E 3,78,62,036 3,52,99,477
compulsarily convertible:preference shares
Weighted average number of shares for Basic EPS F=D+E 4,13,40,586 3,87,48,780
Effect of dilution:
Add: Impact of ordinary shares to be issued upon conversion of Share 17,16,752 17,16,752
Warrants G
Employee stock option H 44,73,268 26,43,268
Weigh i

'EIB. ted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of 4,75,30,606 4,31,08,800
dilution I=F+G+H
Basic earnings per share (in Rs) I=C/F 22.37 5.30
Diluted earnings per share (in Rs) K=C/I 19.46 4.77

Note :‘Earning Per Share have been restated to include the impact of compulsorily convertible preference shares outstanding as at each reporting date

(which increased the denominator) and consider the impact of change on account of restatements.




CarTrade Tech Limited (formerlv known as "MXC Seolutions India Private Limited ")
Notes forrning part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31 2021
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28, Segmeﬁtjreportingi

Ind AS 108 establishes standaids for the way that companies report information about operating segments and related disclosures
about products and services and major customers. The Company'’s operations pre-dominantly relate to automotive digital systems
which n:omjé_ct automobile customers, OEMs, dealers, banks, insurance companies and other stakeholders, pertaining to sale of
cars, trucks and commercial vehicles, Based on internal reporting provided to the Chief operating decision maker, the Group’s
operations predominantly relates to single reportable operating segment which are subject to same risk and rewards of operating
and managing a media / platform for the automotive sector through website fees and commission and related services.

As per management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, management committee reviews and monitors the operating results of the
business segment for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment using profit or loss
and return on capital employed.

All non»currént assets of the Company are located in India.

Geographical Revenue is allocated based on the location of the customer. Information regarding geographical revenue is as
follows

Geogra‘ghi‘ea‘l Revenue

Partic_u,lars For the year ended For the year ended March
March 31, 2021 31, 2020
Revenue from customers
- India . 24,419.64 29,253.39
- Outside India 548.68 574.81
Total Revenue = 24,968.32 29,828.20




CarTrade Tech Limited {formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited ")
Notes ing part of the C lidated fI ts as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
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" 29.Employee Benefits

a) Defined Contribution Plans

The Group makes contributions towards a provident fund under a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. The provident fund is

ed by Emgployea Provident Fund O [

benefits,

Both the employeas and the Greup make p to the provid
2020: Rs, 518.84 Lakhs) under contributions to provident and other funds (Note 20 Employee benefits expense).

bl Defined Benefit Plans

Under this scheme, the Group is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to fund the

fund. Amount recognized as expense amounts to Rs. 517.13 Lakhs_ {March 31,

{i} The Groeup makes annual contribution towards gratuity to an unfunded / funded defined benefit plan for qualifying employees. All plans are unfunded except Shriram
Automall India Limited, The plan provides fer lump sum payments to employees whose right to receive gratuity had vested at the time of resignation, retirement, death

oy

while in employ t or on termination of
moenths. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service except in case of death,

The present value of gratuity obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Proj

giving rlse to additional unit of employee beneafit entitl and each unit

if) The plan typically exposes the Group to sctuarial rlsk such 25 Interest rate risk, salary risk and demographic risk:

d Unit eredit Method, which
iy te build up the final obligation,

of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary for each completed year of service or part thereof in excoss of six

each period, of service as

Interest rate risk - The defined benafit obligation Is calculated using a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will

tend to increase.
Salary risk - Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

Demographic risk - This is the risk of variability of results due to unsy ic nature of dec

that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement, The

effect of these decraments on the defined benefit obllgation is not straight forward and depends upan the

ion of salary i 3

rate and vesting

criteria. Itis important not to overstate withdrawals bacause in the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short career employee typically costs less per year as

compared to a long service employee,

itf) The,most recent actuarial valuation of the defined benefit obligation was carried out as at March 31, 2021 by an Independent actuary,
iv) The-details in respact of the amounts recognised in the Group's financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 for the defined benefit

scheme is as under:

Particulars

Lj_ratuitv

As at
March 31, 2021

1. Principal Actuarial assumptions

Asat

March 31, 2020

Discount rate
Expected rate of salary incroase

5.59% - 6.76%
5.00% - 8.00%

5.60% - 6.85%
5.00% - 8.00%

CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly known as "MXC Sclutions India Private Limited )

IALM {2006-08) Ult,, 100%
of IALM 2012-14

I1ALM (2006-08} Uit., 100% of|
IALM 2012-14

Withdrawal Rates

CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited "}

20% p.a. at younger ages
reducing to 23% p.a, at
older ages

20% p.a. at younger ages
reducing to 23% p.a. at
older ages

Shriram Autemall India Limited

Far service upto 5 years
10% and far service more
than 5 years 5.00% p.a.

For service upto 5 years
10% and below 10.00% p.a.
and for service more than 5

years 5,00% p.a.
Weighted average du
CarTrade Tech Limited {formerly known as "MXC Selutions India Private Limited *) 5.24 541
| Shriram Autemail India Limited 9.98 119

The discount rate is based on the prevailing markst yields of

of India

i

of future cc tofi

F lon cost considered [n the actuarial take

as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations, The
i and other relevant factors,

Particulars Gratulty
As at As at
2 : March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

1L Comy ts of defined benefit costs recognised In the S of Profit and loss
Service cost:

Current service cost 138.36 120.57

Past service cost and [gain) / loss from settlements - -
Net interest experise 4872 53.58
| Expected return.on plan assets ] {20.53) (22.49)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss [Refer Note 20) 166.55 151.66

Particulars Gratui
Asat Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

11l Components of defined benefit costs / (income) recognised in the other comprehensive income
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit [ability:

Return on plan assets {excluding the amount included in net interest cost) (8.22) 12.82

Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from ch in finaneial ption: 48.90 {16.69}

Actuarial (gains} / losses arising fram changes In demographic assumptions - {84.27)

Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from ch in experience adjustment: 35.59 138.27
Compenents of defined benefit income recognised In other comprehensive income 76.27 51.13




CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited ‘)
Netes forming part of the C lidated financial ts as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
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Particulars G
Asat Asat
March31,2021 |  March3i 2020 |
IV. Change in the defined beneflt obligation :
Opening defined benefit obligatlon 795.20 721.85
On acquisition of SAMIL - 10.25
Current service cost 13835 12057
Interest cost 48.72 53.58
|Liabliity transferred out/divestment - {9.03}
Remeasurement (gains)/losses:
Actuarial {gains) / losses arising from ch in fi ial jption: (48.90) {41.92)
Actuarlal (gains) / losses arlsing from changes in demographl pti - (1.79)
Actuarial (gains) / losses arlsin'g from in experience adj (35.59) 5.39
Benefits paid {50.12) (63,70}
Closing defined benefit obligation 847.66 755,20
Particulars Gratuity
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
V. Change In the Fair value of Plan Assets :
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the year 30867 291,90
Interest Income on plan Assets 20.53 22.49
Benafit Paid [7.16) {18.54)
Return on Plan Assets (8.23) 12.82
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the year 313.81 308.67
Particulars Gratuity
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
VIl Disaggregation of Assets ¢
Category of Assets -
Insurance Fund 313.81 308.67
Sensitivity Analysis for Parent
Particulars Gratulty
As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Defined Benefit Obligation - Discount Rate + 50 basis points 451.26 438.08
Defined Benefit Obligation - Discount Rate - 50 basls points 516.75 460.08
Defined Benefit Obligation - Salary Escalation Rate + 50 basls points 516.45 459,84
Defined Benefit Obligation - Salary Escalation Rate - 50 basis points 49142 438.20
Defined Benefit Obligation - Rate of employ + 10 basis points 49641 442,87
Defined Benefit Obligation - Rate of employee turnover - 10 basis points 512.02 455,62
Sensitivity Analysis for Shriram Automall India Limited {and step-down subsidiaries)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Defined Benefit Obligation - Discount Rate + 10 basis points 29.27 34.50
Defined Benefit Obligation - Discount Rate - 10 basls points 32,53 41.04
Defined Benefit Obiigation - Salary Escalation Rate + 10 basis points {26.74) 41.42
Defined Benefit Obligation - Salary Escalation Rate - 10 basis points {2.89) 3571
Defined Beneflt Obligation - Rate of employee turnover + 10 basls points 0.91 11.48
Defined Benefit Obligation - Rate of employee turnover - 10 basis points 0.09 18.54
These sensitivities have been calculated above to shaw the mevement in defined benefit i In lsal and ing there are no other changes in market
conditions at the accounting date. There have been no changes from the previous periods in the hods and ptions used in preparing the itivi Iy
Maturity Analysis of the Benefit P
Gratuity
Particulars Asat Asat
2
1st Followling yoar 17.06 85.12
Sum of yesars 2 to 5 year 182.43 320,10
Sum of years 6 to 10 354,80 32593
Sum of years 11 and above 408,93 £03.51

¢, Leave plan and compensated absences

The liability for compensated absences for the year ended March 31, 2021 is Rs. 253.68 lakhs (March 31, 2020 ; Rs 260.40 lacs) shown under provisions.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
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30. Capital .Managemeht

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes equity capital, convertible preference shares and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure se as to maximize shareholder value.

As at each year end, the Company has only one class of equity shares and has lease liabilities and no debt. Consequent to such capital structure, there
are no externally Imposed capital requirements. In order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Company allocates its capital for re-

investment into business based on its long term financial plans.

31 (1). Employee Stock Option Scheme

(a) In 2010, 2011, 2014 and 2015 the Company had instituted an Equity settled “Employee Stock Option Plan 2010" (ESCP 2010}, “"Employee Stock
Option Plan 2011" (ESOP 2011), “Employee Stock Option Plan 2014" (ESOP 2014) and "Employee Stock Option Plan 2015" (ESOP 2015) for its employees
and directors. The “ESOP 2010", "ESOP 2011" ,"ESOP 2014" and "ESOP 2015" are administered through by the Board. Under the scheme, the Board has
accorded its consent to grant options exercisable into not more than 447,500 {under "ESOP 2010"), 802,608 (under "ESOP 2011") 300,710 (under "ESOP
2014"},1,355,000 (under "ESOP 2015"),1,134,241 {under "ESOP 2021 1") and 2,000,000 (under "ESOP 2021 II") Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each of the

Company.
i Particulars No of options in Pool Maxlmn:im number / %
of Options that shall
ESOP Scheme 2010 4,47,500 |25% vests every year
ESOP Scheme 2011 8,02,608 |25% vests every year
ESOP Scheme 2014 3,00,710 |25% vests every year
ESOP Scheme 2015 13,55,000 |25% vests every year
ESOP Scheme 2021 | 11,34,241 |25% vests every year
ESOP Scheme 2021 || 20,00,000 |15,00,000 option vest

in one year and
balance 25% vests
£Very vear

The following table list the inputs to the Black Scholes Models used for the weighted average fair valuation of the options granted under ESOP Scheme

Weghted average Fair Value of options {in Rs.)

2015:
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Dividend yield (%) 0% 0%
Expected volatility (%) 44.80% 44.80%
Risk free interest rate (%) 7.13% 7.13%
Spot price (Rs) 373.13 373.13
Exercise price (Rs) 271.57 220.55
Expected life of options granted in the year (in years) 7 7
The details of activity under ESOP Scheme 2010
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Outstanding at the beginning of the year (Weighted average exercise price for each year Rs.19.16) 1,97,500 1,97,500
Granted During the year - -
Forfeited during the year - =
Exercised During the year {1,35,000) -
Outstanding at the end of the year 62,500 1,97,500
Weighted average exercise price of options outstanding at the end of year (in Rs.) 14.43 19.16
No. of Option vested until year end 62,500 1,97,500
Weighted average remaining contractual life (in years) 0.30 0.87
Weighted average exercise price of options on the date of grant (in Rs.) 19.16 19.16
7.17 4.08

Options exercised during the year ended March 31, 2021 at an exercise price of Rs. 11/- and fair value of shares as on date of exercise of Rs. 825/-

The details of activity under ESOP Scheme 2011

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 7,60,058 7,60,058
Weighted average exercise price of options outstanding at the beginning of year (in Rs.) 28.74 28.74
Granted During the year - =
Forfeited during the year - -
Exercised During the year . -
Qutstanding at the end-of the year 7,60,058 7,60,058
Weighted average exercise price of options outstanding at the end of year (in Rs.) 28.74 28.74
No. of Option vested until year end 7,60,058 7,60,058
Weighted average remaining contractual life {in years) 1.82 2.82
Weighted average Excersice price of options on the date of grant {in Rs.) 28.74 28.74
10.50 10.50

Fair Value of options (in Rs.)

-
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The details of activity under ESOP Scheme 2014

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Outstanding at the beginning of the year (Weighted average exercise price for each year Rs.205.34) 3,00,710 3,00,710
Granted During the year 4 E
Forfeited during the year - -
Exercised During the year : -
Qutstanding at the end of the year (Weighted average exercise price for each year Rs.205.34) 3,00,710 3,00,710
No. of Option vested until year end 3,00,710 3,00,710
Weighted average remaining contractual life (in years) 3.59 4.59
Weighted average Excersice price of options on the date of grant (in Rs.) 205.34 205.34
Fair Value of options (in Rs.) 2,93 2.93
The details of activity under ESOP Sch 2015

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 13,85,000 13,95,000
Granted During the year - 45,000
Forfeited during the year - (17,500)
Exercised During the year - -
Lapsed During the year (35,000) (37,500)
Outstanding at the end 'of the year 13,50,000 13,85,000
Weighted average exercise price of options outstanding at the beginning of year (in Rs.} 220,55 278.04
Weighted average exercise price of options outstanding at the end of year (in Rs.) 271.57 220.55
No. of Option vested until year end 11,05,000 9,590,000
Weighted average remaining contractual life (in years) 5.82 6.84
Weighted average Excersice price of options on the date of grant (in Rs.) 282.78 227.23
Fair Value of options {in Rs.) 161.76 134.38

Weighted average exercise price of options granted, forfeited and lapsed during the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 is Rs. 472/-

The details of activity under ESOP Scheme 2021 1|

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Outstanding at the beginning of the year E =
Grarited During the year 20,00,000 -
Forfeited during the year - E
Exercised During the year . - 5
Lapsed During the year - =
Outstanding at the end of the year 20,00,000 -
Weighted average exercise price of options outstanding at the beginning of year {in Rs.) 3 #
Weilghted average exercise price of options outstanding at the end of year {in Rs.) 825 -
No. of Option vested until year end - -
Weighted average remaining contractual life {in years) 7.00 -
Weighted average Excersice price of options on the date of grant (in Rs.) 825.00 4
Fair Value of options (in Rs.) 967.26 -
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31 {2)i|SAMIL Emplovee Stock Option Scheme

Ig'SﬁMIL provides share-based payment schemes to its employees. During the year ended 31 March 2021 an employee stock option plan (ESOP) was in existence. The relevant detalls of the scheme
“and the grant are as below.

10n 27 April 2018, the extra general meeting of shareholders & NRC {Nomination and Remuneration committes) granted option aggregating to 6,75,000 options at an exercise price of % 50 per
‘share to the employees of the company (other than CED and Whole-time Director) and the employee of the subsidiary companies under SAMIL ESOP Plan-1. Alse, On 16 August 2020, the board of
‘dlrecturs applwed 782,609 optlons & 5,21,740 options at exercise price of T 10 per share under SAMIL ESOP Plan-Il & SAMIL ESOP Plan-ill respectively. The options are subject to satisfaction of
ithe prescribed vesting conditions, viz, continuing employment with the Company. The above plan Is covered under SAMIL ESOP Plan-l, The other relevant terms of the grant are as below:

H ESQOP PLAN-I ESOP PLAN-1I ESOP PLAN-III
‘iDate of Grant 27-Apr-18 16-Aug-18 16-Aug-18
‘Date of Board/Committee Approval 20-Apr-18 14-AUg-18 14-Aug-18
'Date of Shareholder's approval 27-Apr-18 16-Aug-18 16-Aug-18
No of Options under the Scheme 9,78,261 7,82,609 B,47,826
‘Number of option granted 5,75,000 7,82,609 521,740°
Methed of settlement (Cash/Equity) Equity Equity Equity
| 26-April-20 - 25% 16-August-19 - 25%
iVeSting Pariod 26-April-21- 25% 16-Aug-19 31-March-20- 25%
A 26-April-22-25% 31-March-21-25%
| e Fh-Bnril-73-7588 AMarch-77-350
|Exercise Price per share 50 10 10
26-April-20 - 37.79 63.95 16-August-19 - £ 63.95

iFa]r value on grant date as per valuation report

26-April-21- % 40.54
26-April-22-$43.21
26-April-23- T 45.66

31-March-20- % 64.34
31-March-21- % 64.89
31-March-22- % 65.43

| -y Employees of SAMIL {Other
EE_);@tion given to ) than CEQ and Whole-time
i W sand i Director of SAMIL)

CEO and Whole time CEO and Whole tlrﬁa Director of
Director of SAMIL SAMIL

'I,j[nder ESOP Plan-lll, SAMIL granted 326,087 performance based stock options to its CEQ under its stock options Plan. As per the terms of the agreement, these options shall vest based on
‘achievement of EBITDA target including all its present and future subsidiaries in a Financial Year on or before 31st March 2024, Vesting would be on the date on which the target is achieved.
Dunng year-ended 31 March 2018, the Company determined fair value and assessed It to be not probable and accordingly, did not account for mmpensatlon expanse. During year-ended 31

Mar:h 2020, as part of its annual r nt, the Company | the target to be achievable and accordingly, has recognized P s ona ight-line basis over the
'rarnalmne vesting period endinz on 31 March 2024
l!;g details of activities of SAMIL ESOP Plan-|
k 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
! No. of options WAEP* {in X) No. of options WAEP® (in %)
!Outstanding at the beginning of the year £,14,000 50,00 6,75,000 50.00
‘Granted during the year 10,000 " u -
Forfeited during the year 35,000 50,00 61,000 50,00
‘Exercised during the year % . F 5
\Effect of share split 5 = = -
\Effect of bonus issue 5 x % 5
iOutstanding at the end of the year 5,89,000 50,00 6,14,000 50,00
{Exercisable at the end of the year 1,44,750 50,00 z =
'Welghted average share price at the date of exercise - - . i
Weighted averags!remaining contractual life for the 2.07 years 3,07 years
‘aptions outstanding
ctivities of SAMIL ESOP Plan-1I
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

! No. of options WAEP® {in X No. of options WAEP* {in X,
Ou:standmg at the beginning of the year 7.82,609 10.00 7.82,609 10.00
‘Granted during the year o = = e
‘Forfeited during the year - - - =
‘Exercised during the year - - - .
‘Effect of share split ~ ~ ' : i : » . . .
Effect of bonus idsue’ - - = - -
|Qutstanding at the end of the year 7,82,609 10.00 7,82,609 10.00
\Exercisable at the end of the year 7,82,609 10,00 7,82,608 10.00
‘Weighted average share price at the date of exercise " = = .
‘Weighted average remaining contractual life for the . = - "
Eop_tlnns cutstanding
*weighted average exercise price
The details of activities of SAMIL ESOP Plan-lIL
(R j 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

No. of options WAEP* {in ) No. of options WAEP* {in %)
‘Outstanding at the beginning of the year 5,21,740 5 5,21,740 10.00
:Granted during the year _ = 10.00 - ~
\Forfeited during the year - < = B
\Exereised during the year o 3 & 3 5 .
IEffect of share split  : Iy 3 & "
Effect of bonus issue u - - -
‘Outstanding at the end of the year 5,21,740 10,00 5,21,740 10.00
Exerclsable at the end of the year 3,891,305 - 2,60,870 10.00
!Wélghteu average share price at the date of exercise ' A - - -
e i average ining contractual life for the 1 year 2 years

optlnns outsta ndlr\g

*weighted average exercise price
-
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as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

The Black Scholes valuation model has been used for computing the welghted average fair value for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 considering the following Inputs:

SAMIL Plan -1
Vesting | Vesting Il Vesting Il Vesting IV
: 26 April 2020 _ 26 Aprl 2021 26 April 2022 __26April203
Dividend yield (%) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0,00%
Expected volatility 27.20% 26.80% 27.70% 28.70%
Risk-free interest rate _ 7.76% 7.836% 7.861% 7.855%
Welghted average share price (%) 7156 71.56 71.56 71.56
Exarcise price (%) - | 50 50 50 50
Expected life of options granted in years 4.50 5.50 6.50 7.50
Weighted average fair value of option at the measurement date 37.78 40.54 43,21 45.66
' SAMIL Plan-Ii
| Vesting |
' 16 August 2019
Dividend yield (%) 0.00%
Expected volatility 29.00%
Risk-free interast rate 7.803%
Weighted average share price (%) 71.56
Exercise price (%} 10
Expected life of options granted in years 3.50
Weighted average fair value of optlon at the measurement date 63.95
1 SAMIL Plan-Ill
| Vesting | Vesting 1l Vesting 11l Vesting IV
16 August 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2022
Dividend yield {%5) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected volatility i 28.10% 27.20% 26.50% 26.60%
Risk-free interest rate . 7.803% 7.896% 7.924% 8.007%
Weighted average share price (%) 71.56 71.56 7156 7156
Exerclse price (%) 10 10 10 10
Expected life of options granted in years 3.50 412 512 612
63.85 64.34 64.89 65.43

Weighted average fair value of option at the measurement date
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32 Leases

The Group has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases” from April 01, 2019, which resulted in changes in accounting policies in the financial statements.

Transition

Effective April 1, 2019, the Group adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts-existing on April 1, 2018 using the modified
retrospective method. The Company has recognised assets of Rs. 4,829.57 lakhs and liability of Rs. 4,971.72 lakhs and has taken the cumulative adjustment to
of Rs.400.73 lakhs to retained earnings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Group recorded the lease liabllity at the present value of the lease
payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right to use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the
commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the

year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:
a) Applying a single discount rate ta a portfollo of leases with reasonably similar characteristics

b) Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of Iease term on the date of initial application.

c) Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.
d} Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions: The amendment provided relief to lessees from applying Ind AS 116 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, the Group has elected not to assess whether a Covid-19 related
rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. This amendment had an impact of Rs. 106.72 lakhs {recognised under miscellaneous income) during the

year ended March 31, 2021.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 is 9,40%.with maturity between 2021-2026. Following are the

changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2021:

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Opening balance 3,643.06 -
Additions (Refer Note 3) 2,223.23 4,829.57
Disposals {26.69) (402.90)
Depreciation expense (Refer note 4C) (1,040.91) (783.61)
Closing balance . 4,798.69 3,643.06

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities {included under interest-bearing loans and b

orrowings) and the movements during the period:

|Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Opening balance T 4,214.99 %
Additions 2,199.51 4,971.72
Disposals (25.24) -
Accretion of interest 429.78 348,94
Payments {1,363.91) (1,105.67)
Closing balance 5,455.13 4,214.99
Current 815.23 757.75
Non-current 4,639.90 3,457.24
The following are the amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss:
BT e For the year ended For the year

March 31, 2021 ended March 31,2020 |
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 1,040.91 834.12
Interest expense on lease liabilities 429,78 344,75
Expense relating to Long-term leases (inciuded in other expenses) (523.07) {681.57)
Other exp (lease payments) {440.84) (424.10)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss 106.78 73.20
C. Impact on Ind As Consolidated Statement of cashflow (increase/{decrease))
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Operating lease payments 1,363.91 1,105.67
Ne cashflow from operating activities 1,363.91 1,105.67
Payment of principle portion of lease liabilities (934.13) (760.92)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities (429.78) (344.75)
Net cash flows from financing activities (1,363.91) (1,105.67)
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33. Financial Instruments.. .

__Particulars As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
Financial assets
Measured at FVTPL
Current Investments - Mutual Funds 62,191.12 27,078.50
Investment in Debentures 2,357.84 2,055.08
Measured at amortised cost
Investments in subordinated debts - 341.02
Loan 4,930.00 3,785.00
Trade Receivables 4,729.70 4,669.21
Cash and cash equivalents 2,199.41 1,552.08
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents mentioned above 248.47 207.27
Other financial assets 5,525.89 2,587.21
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Trade payables 2,228.90 1,956.25
Lease liabilities 5,455.13 4,214.99
Other financial liabilities 5,869.67 4.931.93

(i} Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise trade payables and lease liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations.
The Group's principal financial assets include loans, trade receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Group also holds
investments in debt instruments, fixed deposits and mutual funds.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Group's senior
management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Group. The
financial risk committee provides assurance to the Group's senior management that the Group's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

(ii){a)Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of
currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price. Financial instruments affected by market risk include debt and equity investments

Foreign currency risk

The Group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are not
hedged considering the small quantum and short period of such exposure.The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period, which are not hedged is Nil.

The sensitivity to foreign currency of equity is not measured since there are no foreign currency exposures which affect equity directly.
{ii)(b) Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. Group has adopted a policy of only
dealing with creditworthy counterparties, as a means of mitigating the risk of financlal loss from defaults. The Company obtains market feedback on the
creditworthiness of the customer concerned. Customer wise outstanding receivables are reviewed on a monthly basis and where necessary, the credit allowed to
particular customers for subsequent sales is adjusted in line with their past payment performance, Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits and internal
review of receivables by way of Group policy and external litigations with partles which are reviewed and approved by management on a quarterly basis.

For details pertaining to trade recievables and contract assets including impairment allowance on the same refer to Note 18 and for details pertaining to other financial
assets including impairment allowance on the same refer to Note 6

The Ageing analysis of trade receivables (net) before adjustment of impairment allowance of Rs. 803.21 lakhs (March 31, 2020- Rs. 558.45 Jakhs) as of the reporting
date is as follows:

Particulars As a
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

0-30 days 2,790.27 2,711.34
30-90 days 1,133.55 1,102,51
90-180 days 336.30 602.83
181-365 days 293,89 354.09
Above 365 days 978.90 456.89
Total 5,532.91 5,227.66

v,




(ii}{c) Financial instruments and cash deposits note

The Group invests in mutual funds, debentures and sub-ordinated debts with Balanced risk. The Group recognised provis+A21ion for expected credit losses/profit on its

- instruments at fair value through OCI .’

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 is the carrying amounts as per note 5 .

(ii}(d) Liguidity risk management

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table below provides details regarding

the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at respective reporting dates

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated Interest payments as at March 31, 2021

Particulars On demand Due in 1st year Dueinlto5 years Carrying amount
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables 2,228.90 - 2,228,580
Other financial liabilities 5,869.67 - 5,869.67
|Lease liabilities 815.23 _4,639.90 5,455.13
Total 8,913.80 4,639.90 13,553.70
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at March 31, 2020

Particulars On demand Due in 1st year Dueinlto5 years Carrying amount
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables 1,956.25 - 1,956.25
Other financial liabilities 4,931.93 - 4,931.93
Lease liabilities 757.75 3,457.24 4,214.99
Total 7,645,93 3,457.24 11,103.17

o
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34. Fair Value Measurement

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. In accordance with Ind AS, the Company’s investments in debt mutual funds have been fair valued. The
Company has designated investments as fair value through profit and loss. Management assessed that the carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, trade payables and other current liabilities approximate their fair values largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
Financial assets -
Financial assets at amortised cost:

Investments in subordinated debts - - 341.02 341.02
Loan ‘ 4,930.00 4,930.00 3,785.00 3,785.00
Trade Receivables 4,729.70 4,729.70 4,669.21 4,669.21
Cash and cash equivalents 2,199.41 2,199.41 1,952.08 1,952.08
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 248.47 248.47 207.27 207.27
mentioned above

Other financial assets 5,525.89 5.525.89 2,587.21 2,587.21

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost:

Trade payables 2,228.90 2,228.90 1,956.25 1,956.25
Other financial liabilities 5,869.67 5,869.67 4,931.93 4,931.93
Lease liabiliites 5,455.13 5,455.13 4,214.99 4,214.99

The Company uses the hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation techniques as mentioned in accounting
policies:

Financial Asset/ Financial Liabilities Fair Value Fair Value Hierarchy | Valuation t.echnique uid
As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020 key inputs

Financial assets

Investment in Mutual Fund 62,191.12 27,078.50 [Level 1 Quoted price in active
markets (Net Asset Value
issued bv fund)

Investment in Debentures 2,357.84 2,055.08 |Level 1 NAV issued by third party
custodian

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the above mentioned periods.

4
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35. Related party transactions

A .Details of related parties

Description of relationship

Names of related parties

Key Management Personnel

Vinay Sanghi (Chief Executive Officer and Director)

Aneesha Menon (Chief Financial Officer) (w.e.f. July 1,

Lal Bahadur Pal {Company Secretary)

Relatives of key management personnel

|Varun Sanghi

Diya Sanghi (April 26, 2020 to August 31, 2020)

Rashi Uday Gangwal (w.e.f. July 1, 2020}

Enterprise having significant influence over the material subsidiary

Shriram Transport Finance Company Limited

Note:

The transaction with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transaction

B. Nature of Material Transactions/ Names of Related Parties

Trade Receivable

5. No. Pé.ril;kulars For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31, 2021 31, 2020
A Remuneration to Key management personnel (Refer Note 1 below)
1 Vinay Sanghi 564.96 474.23
2+ |Aneesha Menon 76.59 -
3 - |Lal Bahadur Pal 17.29 17.11
B Enterprises having significant influence over the the subsidiary
] Shriram Transport Finance Company Limited
Payments [ Expenses
“a . |Other expenses : 513.17 536.28
Receipts/income
a Revenue from contracts with customers 1,733.70 1,773.86
‘b |Interest on subordinated debt & NCD 211.02 71.45
c Interest on inter-corporate deposit paid 362.83 233.83
d Interest on fixed deposit 26.72 -
e Other income 31.97 45,18
Other Transactions
a - |[inter-corporate deposit repaid 940.00 1,310.00
b Inter-corporate deposit given 2,085.00 2,500.00
¢ |investment in Fixed deposits 2,000.00 b
(o Remuneration to relatives of key management personnel (Refer
Note 1 below)
1 Varun Sanghi 24.22 16.76
2 Diya Sanghi 1.04 -
3 Rashi Uday Gangwal 10.63 -
C. Balance outstanding
S.No. |Particulars As at As at
i March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A Shriram Transport Finance Company Limited
1 Inter-corporate deposit (Receivable) 4,930.00 3,785.00
2 Interest receivable 91.79 197.39
3 Investment in subordinated debt & NCD 2,357.84 2,305.58
4 Investment in Fixed Deposit 2,000.00 -
5 Interest receivable on fixed deposit 24,71 -
6 6.98 5.93

Note 1 : Remuneration to KMP includes share based payment expenses of Rs.91.93 lakhs determined in accordance with applicable
accounting standards and does not include the provision for gratuity and compensated absences which are determined on an actuarial basis

for the Company as a whole.

Note 2: The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions, This

assessment is undertaken each financial
related party operations,

/.

riod/year through examining the financial position of the related party and market in which the
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|

36. Capital and other commitments

Particulars fxal i
| March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Estimated ! cts remaini i
ed amount of.contra;ct maining to be executed on capital 83.41 S8
account and not provided for
37. Contingent Liabilities
Particulars ! : Asat fa ot
| ; ; March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Income Tax (refer note (i) below) - 36.99
Services Tax (refer note {ii) below) 48.64 48.64
Maharastra Value Added Tax (refer note (iii) below) 75.28 75.28

i) Shriram Automall India Limited ("subsidiary company") received notice u/s 143(1) of Income Tax Act’1961, from the Income Tax
Authorities requiring the subsidiary company to pay additional tax of Rs, 13.79 lakhs (March 31, 2020 Rs. 13.79 lakhs) for assessment
year 2016-17. The manggement has filed rectification u/s 154 of Income Tax Act’1961 which has been rejected by Department, later
during the FY 2020-21, the amount of X 13.79 lacs adjusted with refund for AY 2019-20. The management doesn't intend to contest
further and accounted for Rs. 13.79 lacs in Income Statement.

The subsidiary company received notice from the Income Tax Authorities requiring the subsidiary company to pay additional tax of Rs.
23.20 lakhs {March 31, 2020 Rs. 23.20 lakhs) for assessment year 2017-18. The demand pertains to disallowance of disallowances u/s
43(B) and royalty expenses,; treating it as capital expenditure. The subsidiary company had filed an appeal with Commissioner of
Income' Tax (Appeal) contesting the demand made by assessing officer. During the FY 2020-21, the CIT (A) passed an order in
company's favour via.order no. ITA No. 0375/CIT(A)-15/2019-20 dt. 22 Sep 2020 and directed the AO to arrive out the correct income
as oer Income tax act, :

ii) Shriram Automall India Lifnited ("subsidiary company") has received show cause notice during 2015-16, wherein it was alleged that
the subsidiary company hasiincorrectly availed Cenvat Credit of Rs. 24.56 lakhs (31 March 2020 Rs. 24.56 lakhs) on ineligible services
not related to the Output and certain capital goods. It was also alleged that the subsidiary company availed Cenvat Credit of Rs, 17.44
lakhs (31 March. 2020 Rs. 17.44 lakhs) on input services commonly used in respect of taxable and exempt services, Additionally,
adjudicating authority imposed the interest & penalty of Rs. 42 lakhs (31 March 2020 Rs. 42 lakhs), which was confirmed by
Commission of Service Tax (Appeal). The subsidiary company has adjusted / paid service tax amounting to Rs. 36 lakhs (31 March 2020:
Rs. 36 lakhs) and filed the appeal in Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, The management is confident of favourable outcome in Appeal.

The subsidiary company has received show cause notice during 2015-16 for prior years, wherein it was alleged that the subsidiary
company has incorrectly availed Cenvat Credit of Rs. 25.80 lakhs (March 31, 2020 Rs. 25.80 lakhs) and has also not discharged service
tax liability of Rs. 44.12 ‘lakhs (March 31, 2020 Rs. 44.12 lakhs) on its output services. The subsidiary company has provided for & paid
the demand of Rs. 44.13 lakhs (March 31, 2020 Rs. 44.12 lakhs) and opted for Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019,
The subsidiary company has filed the application on October 10, 2019 and the relief was granted to the Company for Rs. 25.80 under
Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme 2019.

iil} Maharashtra VAT authorities have alleged that Shriram Automall India Limited ("subsidiary company") is regularly conducting
auction sale of motor vehicles repossessed by financing companies, which are taxable under MVAT Act. However, the subsidiary
company has neither obtained registration under MVAT Act nor discharged VAT on the sale of repossessed motor vehicles. As per the
authorities, the subsidiary would qualify as a ‘deemed dealer' under the MVAT Act as Section 2(8) of MVAT Act provides that an
auctioneer would also be regarded as a ‘deemed dealer’ and activity of selling/auctioning of repossessed vehicles qualifies as 'sale’
under MVAT Act. Accordingly, authorities have imposed VAT {along with interest and penalty) of Rs. 181.28 lakhs (March 31, 2020 Rs.
181.28 [akhs) on the value of motor vehicles auctioned by the subsidiary company. The subsidiary had filed an appeal before
Commissioner {Appeals} against the above Order, The Commissioner {Appeals) has given deduction for the services fees recovered by
the subs1d|an,r company from vendors for providing auction services and for the Instances wherein the subsidiary has produced
documents to prove that VAT has been duly paid by the vendor and, passed an OlA against the subsidiary company. The subsidiary
company has filed an ap:peai before the Hon'ble Maharashtra Sales Tax Tribunal and the matter is still pending. the subsidiary company
has pa'id Rs, 99.03 lakhs (March 31, 2020 Rs. 99.03 lakhs) under protest. The subsidiary company has made provision of Rs. 41 lakhs
(net off of payment by vendors of Rs. 65 lakhs) towards demand and remaining amount of Rs. 75.28 lakhs has been disclosed. The
management is confident of favourable outcome in Appeal.

Iv) There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on PF dated February 28, 2019, As a matter
of caution, Shriram Autdmall India Limited ("subsidiary company") has made a provision on a prospective basis from the date of the SC
order. The subsidiary company will update its provision, on receiving further clarity on the subject.

v} Shriram Automall India Limited ("the subsidiary company") has received various claims from its customers, in relation to the services
rendered by it. The subsidiary. company has either responded to such claims directly to customers or filed a response with appropriate
authorities, where such claj lodged by the customers. There exists an uncertainty over the outcome of such cases, however




CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited ")
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

38. Acquisitions and mergers

(A) Acﬁuisition of Augeo Asset Management Private Limited

On 8th January 2020, Shriram Automall India Limited acquired 6,07,300 equity shares at fair value of Rs. 24.70 per share being
54.85% of the voting shares of Augeo Asset Management Private Limited, a non-listed Company based in India and specialised in
providing wide range of stressed asset management services, e-auction, e-sourcing, in exchange for the Company’s shares. Shriram
Automall India Limited acquired Augeo Asset Management Private Limited because it significantly provides knowledge services

across diverse industry verticals that empower businesses with greater process and efficiencies.

Shriram Automall India Limited has elected to measure the controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value.

I. Purchase consideration

Il. The fair value of assets and liabilities recognized as a result of the acquisition is as follows:

(Rupees in lakhs)
150.00

Assets- .

Property, Plant and Equipment
Other Intangible Assets

Capital Work.in Progress
Investments

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other. Financial Assets
Other',Current Assets

Total assets acquired (A)

Liabilities

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Borroui.vings :

Trade payables

Other Current Liabilities

Provisions

Total liabilities acquired (B) .

Total net assets acquired

Non-Controlling Interest @ 45.15%

Group's share of net identifiable asset acquired
Share in capital (6,07,300 equity shares at fair value of Rs. 24.70 per share)
Share in opening loss of subsisiary

Goodwill arisisng on acquisition

Total Purchase consideration

(Rupees in lakhs)

3.38
2.45
8.12
1.00
2.81
1.74
5.84

25.34

(0.08)
(1.65)
(18.10)
(0.44)
(6.25)

(26.52)
(1.18)
(0.53)

(0.65)
150.00
(27.94)

28.59

150.00

Note: Goodwill recognised is not expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

The Group measured the acquired lease liabilities using the present value of the remaining lease payments at the date of
acquisition. The right-of-use assets were measured at an amount equal to the lease liabilities and adjusted to reflect the favourable

terms of the lease relative to market terms
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CarTrade Tech Limited (formerly known as "MXC Solutions India Private Limited ")
Notes formlqk;part; of the Consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts m INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

39. SubsidiariZes considered in the preparation of the consolidation Financial Statements

Percentage of effective ownership

o s Country of
idi P | activit
. Name of Subsidiary rincipal activity incorporativn — o
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(a) Subsidiaries
CarTrade Finance Private Limited Finance India 100.00% 100.00%
Shriram Automall India Limited Auctions India 55.43% 55.43%
{b) Subsidiaries of Shriram Automall India Limited
Adroit Inspection Services Private Limited {Adroit) Inspection India 55.43% 55.43%
CarTrade Exchange Solutions India Private Limited (CTE) ; :

I 55.43 55.43%
(Formerly known as Motogo India Private Limited) Ruttions el i
Augeo Asset Management Private Limited (Augeo) Asset management services India 30.40% 30.40%

The Compan\d owns 55.43% of SAMIL which inturn owns 100% in Adroit, CTE and 54.85% in Augeo.
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